UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WISCONSIN

MILWAUKEE DIVISION

ERIC O’KEEFE, and

WISCONSIN CLUB FOR GROWTH, INC.

Plaintiffs,

FRANCIS SCHMITZ, in his official
and personal capacities,

JOHN CHISHOLM, in this official
and personal capacities,

BRUCE LANDGRATF, in his official
and personal capacities,

DAVID ROBLES, in his official
and personal capacities,

DEAN NICKEL, in his official

and personal capacities,

GREGORY PETERSON, in his
official capacity,

Defendants.

Case No. 14¢cv139-rir

DECLARATION OF REID MAGNEY

Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, I, Reid Magney, hereby declare as follows:

1. [ am an adult resident of Dane County, Wisconsin. I make this declaration based
on my personal knowledge of the facts set forth below.

2. 1 am the Public Information Officer of the Wisconsin Government Accountability
Board (“GAB”). I was hired to this position on July 20, 2009. I have initial and significant

responsibilities associated with GAB responses to public records requests from the public, state
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and local officials, media, interest groups, political parties, etc. In the exercise of these
responsibilities, I have become well-versed in Wis. Stats. §85.05(5s) and 12.13(5) as they relate
to prohibitions regarding release of investigation information, including the full text of any
complaints, as it is a criminal offense to make an unauthorized disclosure which would subject
me up to 9 months in jail or a $10,000 fine or both.

3. Any person may file a complaint with the board alleging a violation of chs. 5 to
12, subch. IIT of ch. 13, or subch. III of ch. 19. If the board reviews a complaint and fails to find
that there is a reasonable suspicion that a violation has occurred or is occurring, the board shall
dismiss the complaint. If the board reviews a complaint, it must determine whether there is
probable cause and issue findings. In addition, the board may resolve a complaint via a
settlement agreement and civil forfeiture. The findings of no reasonable suspicion or no
probable cause, along with settlement agreements and civil forfeitures are public records and
may be disclosed pursuant to Wis. Stats. §85.05(1)(c), 5.05(5s) and 12.13(5).

4. I am aware that the GAB has investigated members and candidates belonging to
both the Republican and Democratic parties. I often receive requests from the media to comment
on complaints filed and released publicly by both parties; however, I always refrain from
commenting publicly other than to acknowledge receipt of a complaint that the complainant has
already released publicly. Since working with the GAB, it has been my observation that an
individual’s or entity’s affiliation with a political party or cause plays no role in the GAB’s
analysis of whether an investigation into violations of Wisconsin campaign finance laws should
be commenced.

5. Even though Wisconsin law makes it a criminal offence to disclose any

information about a possible investigation authorized by the GAB, I am specifically permitted to
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provide the attached documents representing civil forfeitures, as well as findings of no
reasonable suspicion or no probable cause. These records document GAB actions with regard to
. both Democrats and Republicans. They support my observations that the GAB approaches
complaints and investigations in a nonpartisan manner and is not influenced by the partisan

affiliations of complainants or respondents.

6. I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.
Executed on the 14" day of April 2014, w
Reid Magney
3
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State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board
In the Matter of

)
)
)  SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
)
)

Barrett for Wisconsin 0101475 GAB Case #2013-07-A

This agreement is entered into pursuant to the authority granted in §5.05 (1) (c),
Wisconsin Stafutes, for the purpose of settling a potential action for a violation of
Chapter 11, Wisconsin Statutes. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree as
follows:

1. That Friends of Tom Barrett d/b/a Barrett for Wisconsin, from 4/6/2012 to
6/5/2012, was a registered political committee with the Wisconsin
Government Accountability Board.

2. That during that time, Friends of Tom Barrett d/b/a Barrett for Wisconsin
benefitted from contributions from political committees totaling $720,911.40.

3. That §11.26(9)(a) and §11.31(a), Wisconsin Statutes, establish that a
candidate for governor may not take more than $700,830 from all political
committees during a campaign period (this is also known as the 65% limit).

4. That by accepting contributions over the amount of $700,830, Friends of Tom
Barrett d/b/a Barrett for Wisconsin was in violation of these provisions.

5. That Friends of Tom Barrett has agreed to forfeit the amount of the overage,
$20,081.40, to a charity or charities in settlement of this matter.

6. That Friends of Tom Barrett will provide a copy of the check or checks made
out to each charity to the Government Accountability Board with this

settlement agreement.
_&JUWM\U o£ \@_’\_aw jft,uxw/wu - ‘/ls/ﬁ-

For Friends of Tom Barrett Date
STATE OF WISCONSIN Date 7
GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY

BOARD

By: Kevin J. Kennedy
Director and General Counsel
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Stété of Wisconsin coiad é@érnment Accountability Board

In the Matter of ',;1 FEB 25 Fi p: a5

e U SEFTEEMENT AGREEMENT
Voces de la Frontera FEWREABILITY Boann
Action Commiittee ) GAB Case #2014-01

This agreement is entered into pursuant to the authority granted in §5.05 (1) (c),
Wisconsin Statutes, for the purpose of settling a potential action for a violation of
Chapter 11, Wisconsin Statutes. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree as follows:

. That the Voces de la Frontera Action Committee at all relevant times, was a
registered independent disbursement committee with the Wisconsin Government
Accountability Board.

. That the Voces de la Frontera Action Committee produced and distributed mailers
on November 13, 2013, supporting and opposing candidates in the 21% Assembly
District Special Election, held on November 19, 2013.

. That the Voces de la Frontera Action Committee did not properly amend an
independent oath with the G.A.B. prior to making a disbursement and mailing
independent literature in violation of §11.06(7), Wis. Stats.

. That the Voces de la Frontera Action Committee has filed an independent oath with
the G.A.B. on January 8, 2014, but it was not timely.

- That §11.12(6), Wis. Stats., requires reporting within 24 hours of the disbursements
during the 15 days preceding the election on November 19, 2013. Voces de la
Frontera Action Committee filed a Special Report of Late Independent Disbursement
on January 8, 2014, for independent disbursements greater than $20. This report
was filed 55 days late, in violation of §11.12(6), Wis. Stats.

. That the Voces de la Frontera Action Committee has agreed to pay $250.00 to the
Government Accountability Board in settlement of this matter.

W Q;,(»..\\, )\Aexo\w 4% §') Zol‘-}

ELLIOTT MAGERS Date
Administrator/Agent — Voces de la Frontera Action
Committee

L aliglry

STATE BF WISCONSIN Date
GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD
By:  Kevin J. Kennedy

Director and General Counsel

Case 2:14-cv-00139-RTR Filed 04/15/14 Page 5 of 95 Document 105 p.

2



€°'d

[EUSIER] UDlEdWEn]  Boueli ubledwes[061$ Aquipssy
U0 JBue|osi Jadald ane o) ainie Jopailopes - SQIOPEY M
924 BUlllf JO1UBUIREL o187]|  souetid UBiBduieD|002$ OVd ou] BoBUSZ
o84 Bulid jojusuwifey 91g  eoleuly ubedwed|00Zs siayuadies Bay 0Beoiys 'Ovd IM
994 bullid jo JuswiAeg eje|  soueul4 ubledwes|oozs wesAg yiesH uea(
894 Buljid Jojueuihed ez} soueuld ubledweploozd Ovd sisjua/sueisiud Im
984 Bullid Jojusuiled sjey|  eoueuld ublEdwWED|00ZS OV 1M §0 siaueg Alunuwiuon
994 Bullid o Juswheg ejey|  soueuld ubiedwen|o0zs ueBiyoA Jo anjD sjiqowoiny
so4 Bulid jojustuked ael|  eoueuld uBieduies|00zZS N d 4109 1o -Aydinyy
234 Buyi4 jo Juswiheq sje|  esoueuly ubledwenloozs 05} [Bo07) seahojdwz a01A9S
e84 Bulild jo Juswhed sjer]  Ssueuly ubledwen|oozs OVd U Jueinssy
294 bulji4 o jusiked a1 sdueuly ubleduieg10078 ~Ovd TONNOD
. . . LVIS IM FHIH-ILING
294 Bujiy jojuawheq 9je|  eoueuly ubledwen|nozs €81 [es0o siapid Jepjuuds
aay Buyiyjouswihey sje|  soueud ubedwenigozs O d SISINN
894 Bulll jo-jusikey el sourwy ubledwen|oozs OV d seshojdiig ¥SdM
894 Buid %.Em&amu ﬂmq ~‘soupuly ubledwen ooww B0IBLIIOY JO USSY M{IIN ONBN
a4 Buygjowewhed sjeyl  soueuld ubledwedloozs WMoY DljBInctie( SjeUSS SIBlS
29 Buljid joquawdhed sjey|  oouRuld mmﬁa&mo, 00Z% 00 29XNEMIN JO AlBd day
284 bulidJojuswied oy @sueuly uBleduresn|oozs Aued onjeioows( 0O BUSOUDH
o84 Bullid jo ewhed sjey|  eoueuld ublEdweDI007$ Ryeq ueoygndey 09 siwebeinO

soueuly ubedwen i

UISHOOSIAA 1O Aued aneioows(

abegen voser

SWENIA Aliod SyeuY

JBLIOOMBN R0OS

DIOIUIS BUBSHYD

AgsBuo erewel

ysyolg 48l

sien Auoyjuy

oInY 189415 Ja1BM SJ20T

Case 2:14-cv-00139-RTR Filed 04/15/14 Page 6 of 95 Document 105



Dick Skare - Skare for Assembly

$300

Campaign Finance

Failure to Have Proper Disclaimer on

Campaign zm"m:m.

P.4
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Governmenti Accountability Board

State of Wisconsin -

212 €. Washinglon Ave.. Third Floor ¢ Madisen, Vit 53702 2 gatu@wi.gow « (B0 268-8005 « Help Sest {(66S) 251-20%8 « hitp:iigab.wi.gov
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: FOR MORE INFORMATION, CONTACT:
March 25, 2010 Reid Magney, 608-267-7887

G.A.B. Announces Excessive Contribution Actions

MADISON, WI — The Government Accountability Board has collected more than $23,000 in forfeitures
from seven people who violated the state’s $10,000 campaign contribution limit in 2008.

The Board investigated 14 individuals who appeared to have violated Wisconsin law prohibiting
individuals from making more than $10,000 in contributions to state and local political candidates and
committees in a calendar year. Investigators determined that seven of the individuals had not violated the
law, based on the individuals providing documentation that contributions should have been partially
attributed to a spouse.

The Board pursued action against seven individuals, and they have paid forfeitures totaling $23,499.07.
The amount of the forfeiture was generally one-and-a-half times the amount of the excess contributions,
although the Board approved some smaller forfeitures based on unique circumstances. The following
individuals have paid forfeitures:

Individual 2008 Aggregate Forfeiture Paid
Contribution Total

Donald Becker $11,500 $2,250

Kevin Dabney $14,000 $6,000

Jerome Frautschi $11,500 $3,375

Gary Goyke $14,074.38 $6,449.07

Philip Hees $10,100 $300

Stacey Herzing $18,125 $3,200

Pierre McCormick $11,250 $1,875

In Wisconsin’s campaign finance law, the Legislature declared that “excessive spending on campaigns for
public office jeopardizes the integrity of elections.” In addition to setting limits on contributions to a
specific candidate for a particular public office during a campaign cycle, the law also sets a $10,000 limit
on an individual’s total contributions each calendar year to any combination of Wisconsin candidates or
political committees. (5. 11.26(4) Wis. Stats.)

Forfeitures collected by the Board are deposited in the State’s Common School Fund.

Board staff is now auditing 2009 campaign contributions.
#Hith

The Government Accountability Board is responsible for administration and enforcement of campaign finance, elections, ethics
and lobbying laws in Wisconsin, The board is made up of six non-partisan, former judges and is supported by an agency of
non-partisan staff members. Additional information about the mission of the Govemment Accountability Board is available by
telephone at 608-266-8005, by electronic mail at gab@wi.gov, or through the Internet at http://gab.wi.gov.
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State of Wisconsin \ Government Accountability Board

212 East Washington Avenue, 3™ Floor
Post Office Box 7984

Mudison, W1 53707-7984

Volce (608) 266-8005

Fax  (608) 267-0500

E-mail: gub@wisconsin.gov
http//gab.wigov

JUDGE DAVID G. DEININGER
Chairperson

KEVIN J. KENNEDY
Dircctor and General Counsel

MEMORANDUM
DATE: For the August 28, 2012 Board Meeting
TO: Members, Government Accountability Board

FROM: KevinJ. Kennedy
Director and General Counsel
Government Accountability Board

Prepared and Presented by: :
Jonathan Becker, Ethics and Accountability Division Administrator

Michael Haas, Staff Counsel

SUBJECT: Heritage Alliance Voter Guide

Summary

Heritage Alliance is a 501(c)(4) non-profit organization based in Dallas, Texas, which publishes
a Voter Guide on its website. The Voter Guide issues grades for political candidates in several
states based upon their positions on various public issues. The Heritage Alliance has sought the
Board’s advice as to whether the organization must register with the G.A.B. and file campaign
finance reports of funds raised and spent related to the Voter Guide as a political communication.
Attached is correspondence from the Heritage Alliance presenting arguments as to why it
believes the Voter Guide does not qualify as a political communication under Wisconsin Statutes
and GAB 1.28, Wis. Adm. Code.

Also attached are screenshots from the Voter Guide, and staff will attempt to set up the
technology necessary to display the website at the Board meeting. Board members may view the
Heritage Alliance website and Voter Guide by entering a Wisconsin address at
hitp://www.heritagealliance.com/voter-guide php. Board staff is seeking the Board’s input and
determination regarding the characterization of the Voter Guide as either a political
communication subject to campaign finance regulation or an issue ad which is not subject to
such regulation. In the opinion of Board staff, the Voter Guide is not subject to regulation
pursuant to GAB 1.28.

Applicable Law

Wis. Stat. §11.05 requires political committees and independent disbursement organizations to
register with the G.A.B. and file campaign finance reports when they accept contributions or
make expenditures exceeding $25 in a calendar year for political purposes. A disbursement is
for a political purpose when it is made for the purpose of influencing the election or nomination
for election of any individual to state or local office. Wis. Stat. §11.05(16).
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As the Board is aware, Section GAB 1.28, Wis. Adm. Code, attempts to further define the
communications which are subject to campaign finance regulations. A copy of the complete
administrative rule is attached, and the Board’s open session agenda also includes consideration
of a Guideline intended to educate the public and stakeholders about the regulation. The relevant
administrative rule language is contained in GAB 1.28(3)(b), referring to a communication

which is “susceptible of no reasonable interpretation other than as an appeal to vote for or against
a specific candidate,” and which lists several factors the Board may consider to determine if a
communication is subject to regulation.

Heritage Alliance Voter Guide

The Heritage Alliance Voter Guide assigns grades to both incumbents and challengers, for the
Republican Partisan Primary and the General Election. The Guide lists candidates for both
federal and state offices. The attached exhibits illustrate the candidate information and grades
for Republican candidates in a selected State Senate election. The assigned grades reflect a
panel’s assessment regarding the likelihood that the candidate will govern consistent with certain
identified values. The Voter Guide may assign the same grade to opposing candidates, and it
contains a disclaimer that the Heritage Alliance does not support or oppose candidates.

The correspondence submitted by the Heritage Alliance asserts that the Voter Guide is not
subject to regulation under GAB 1.28 because it is susceptible of a reasonable interpretation
other than as an appeal to vote for or against a specific candidate. In support of this argument the
correspondence notes that several candidates for the same office may receive the same grade,
and that no particular grade results in the organization supporting or opposing a candidate.
Applying the standards of GAB 1.28, it also asserts that the Voter Guide does not refer to the
personal qualities, character, or fitness of a candidate, and does not support or condemn a
particular candidate’s position or public record. The Heritage Alliance concludes that its Voter
Guide can reasonably be interpreted as a way to educate voters about publicly available
information combined with the opinions of conservative leaders in the local community, and is
therefore not subject to regulation under Chapter 11 and GAB 1.28.

Given the Board’s ongoing efforts to apply the provisions of GAB 1.28 to actual examples of
communications, Board staff is secking the Board’s input regarding the Heritage Alliance Voter
Guide. The perspective of the Heritage Alliance and its general political philosophy is clear
from the Voter Guide and the website containing it. However, the Voter Guide does not
expressly advocate for the election or defeat of any specific candidate, and applying campaign
finance regulations to expenditures related to it appear problematic, given the “susceptible of no
reasonable interpretation” language in GAB 1.28.

In the opinion of Board staff, the Voter Guide may be reasonably interpreted as an effort to
provide information to voters about candidates and inviting voters to make their own conclusions
regarding the quality of the candidates, whether or not the voter agrees with the Heritage
Alliance’s political perspective and priorities. In that case, the Voter Guide is susceptible of
reasonable interpretations other than as an appeal to vote for or against a specific candidate.
Board staff recommends that the Board approve this determination based upon the findings
outlined below. Including specific findings will help the Board to establish a body of decisions
which may assist in evaluating future cases, and promote consistency in the Board’s
determinations. '
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Recommended Motion:

The Board advises that the Heritage Alliance Voter Guide does not constitute a political
communication pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Chapter 11 and GAB 1.28, and is not subject to
‘campaign finance registration and reporting requirements. This determination is based upon the
following findings by the Board:

1. The Heritage Alliance Voter Guide does not contain terms listed in GAB 1.28(3)(a), Wis.
Adm. Code, or their functional equivalents with reference to a clearly identified candidate or
unambiguously related to a campaign of a candidate. The Voter Guide contains references to
candidates but not terms such as “vote for,” “support,” or “defeat.”

2. The Voter Guide was created and published during the period beginning 30 days preceding
the Partisan Primary and presumably will remain published with regard to nominated
candidates during the period beginning 60 days preceding the 2012 General Election.

3. The Voter Guide does contain subjective evaluations and judgments regarding the personal
qualities, character, and fitness of various candidates for state office, based upon the political
perspectives and priorities of the Heritage Alliance. The Voter Guide and the Heritage
Alliance website may lead a reader to imply that the candidate’s position on issues or public
record is being supported or condemned in comparison to other candidates.

4. Although the Voter Guide assigns subjective grades to the candidates who are evaluated, and
that information is located on the same website which promotes the views of the Heritage
Alliance, it does not unambiguously support or condemn a candidate’s position or stance on
issues or the candidate’s public record.

5. Given that the Voter Guide and the Heritage Alliance website contain information which a
reader may interpret as referring to the personal qualities, character, or fitness, and as
supporting or opposing a candidate in comparison to other candidates, one reasonable
interpretation of the Voter Guide is that it is a communication that is an appeal to vote for or
against specific candidates listed in the Guide.

6. Another reasonable interpretation of the Voter Guide is that it is a communication that only
provides information to voters about candidates and invites voters to make their own
conclusions regarding the quality of the candidates, whether or not the voter agrees with the
Heritage Alliance’s political perspective and priorities. This interpretation would conclude
that the Voter Guide, while summarizing and assessing the candidates’ position on issues,
does not specifically support or condemn those positions.

7. Because the Heritage Alliance’s Voter Guide is susceptible of more than one reasonable
interpretation, and one such interpretation is other than an appeal to vote for or against a
specific candidate, the Voter Guide is not a communication that is made for a political
purpose under the provisions of Chapter 11 and GAB 1.28, Wis. Adm. Code.
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MEMORANDUM
DATE: For the December 18, 2012 Board Meeting
TO: Members, Government Accountability Board

FROM: Kevin J. Kennedy
Director and General Counsel
Government Accountability Board

Prepared and Presented by:
Michael Haas, Staff Counsel

Kathleen Marschman, Legal Intern

SUBJECT: Billy Graham Evangelistic Association Advertisements

Summary

The Billy Graham Evangelistic Association (Association) is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization
based in Charlotte, North Carolina, which sponsored two print advertisements in the days prior to
the General Election of November 6, 2012. The Board received a complaint from the Freedom
From Religion Foundation (Foundation) alleging that the advertisements constituted political
communication, thereby requiring the Association to register with the G.A.B. and file campaign
finance reports to disclose funds raised and spent related to the advertisements. A copy of the
complaint is attached.

The Foundation alleges similar full-page advertisements were published in the October 21, 2012
Wisconsin State Journal and the October 28, 2012 Wisconsin State Journal and Milwaukee
Journal Sentinel. Attached is a photocopy supplied by the Foundation and described as the text
of a full-page advertisement purported to have appeared in the Wisconsin State Journal on
October 21, 2012.

Board staff is seeking the Board’s input and determination regarding the characterization of the
advertisements of the Association as either political communications subject to campaign finance
regulation or issue ads which are not subject to such regulation. In the opinion of Board staff,
the advertisements are not subject to regulation pursuant to GAB 1.28, Wis. Adm. Code.

Applicable Law

Wis. Stat. §11.05 requires political committees and independent disbursement organizations to
register with the G.A.B. and file campaign finance reports when they accept contributions or
make expenditures exceeding $25 in a calendar year for political purposes. A disbursement is
for a political purpose when it is made for the purpose of influencing the election or nomination
for election of any individual to state or local office. Wis. Star. §11.05(16).
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As the Board is aware, Section GAB 1.28, Wis. Adm. Code, attempts to further define the
communications which are subject to campaign finance regulations. A copy of the complete
administrative rule is attached. There are two distinct tests under GAB 1.28(3) by which a
communication is considered to be for a political purpose. The first requires the communication
to contain certain enumerated terms, or their functional equivalents, in conjunction with
reference to a clearly identified candidate and unambiguously relate to the campaign of that
candidate. GAB 1.28(3)(a), Wis. Adm. Code. The other refers to a communication which is
“susceptible of no reasonable interpretation other than as an appeal to vote for or against a
specific candidate,” and lists several factors the Board is to consider in determining if a
communication is for a political purpose. GAB 1.28(3)(b), Wis. Adm. Code. This test also
requires a reference to or depiction of a clearly identified candidate.

Billy Graham Evangelistic Association Advertisements

The Association’s advertisement provided by the Foundation contained a photographic depiction
of Billy Graham and reproduction of his signature, constituting approximately one-half of the
advertisement. A disclaimer appears indicating the advertisement was paid for by the
Association. The upper right quarter of the advertisement contained the text:

“On November 6, the day before my 94"™ birthday, our nation will hold one of the most critical
elections in my lifetime. We are at a crossroads and there are profound moral issues at stake. I
strongly urge you to vote for candidates who support the biblical definition of marriage between
a man and a woman, protect the sanctity of life, and defend our religious freedoms. The Bible
speaks clearly on these crucial issues. Please join me in praying for America, that we will turn
our hearts back toward God.”

The Foundation alleges a similar full-page advertisement appeared in the October 28, 2012
Wisconsin State Journal and Milwaukee Journal Sentinel and contained the text:

“The legacy we leave behind for our children, grandchildren, and this great nation is crucial. As
I approach my 94" birthday, I realize this election could be my last. I believe it is vitally
important that we cast our ballots for candidates who base their decisions on biblical principles
and support the nation of Israel. I urge you to vote for those who protect the sanctity of life and
support the biblical definition of marriage between a man and a woman. Vote for biblical values
this November 6, and pray with me that America will remain one nation under God.”

The Foundation asserts that the combination of “coded wording of the ads,” the timing, and
knowledge of the general public as to the meaning, constituted a call to vote for “certain known
Republican candidates for state and federal office.” Neither advertisement makes reference to a
specific candidate or political party.

Given the Board’s ongoing efforts to apply the provisions of GAB 1.28 to actual examples of

communications, Board staff is seeking the Board’s input regarding the Association’s
advertisements.
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Analysis

At its August 28, 2012 meeting the Board found a voter guide published by the Heritage Alliance
was not a political communication because it was susceptible of a reasonable interpretation other
than as an appeal to vote for or against a specific candidate, even though the guide contained
references to specific candidates and a subjective *“grade” was assigned to each candidate on the
same website promoting the political views of the organization. The Board concluded that the
voter guide was a communication that provided information to voters about candidates and
invited voters to make their own conclusions regarding the quality of the candidates, whether or
not the voter agreed with the organization’s political perspective and priorities. Additionally, the
Board held the voter guide, while summarizing and assessing the candidate’s position on issues,
did not specifically support or condemn candidates’ positions.

Most notable in the current instance is that the advertisements do not make reference to any
specific candidate. No candidate is named, no political party is mentioned, and no particular
political race is identified. The Association’s advertisements do, however, use the terms “vote
for,” and “cast our ballots for.” In the Heritage Alliance Voter Guide case the opposite was true
— the candidates were clearly identified, but the operative terms were not used. In both
instances a critical element was absent.

Similar to the Heritage Alliance Voter Guide which was available on the same website which
promoted the political perspective and priorities of the organization, here the political
perspective and priorities of the Association are openly promoted. Additionally, much of the
general public is likely aware of the Association’s political views given the longstanding
reputation of Billy Graham.

In the opinion of Board staff, under either test for determining whether a communication is for a
political purpose, the required elements are not satisfied.

Recommended Motion:

The Board concludes that the advertisements referenced above, purchased by the Billy Graham
Evangelistic Association, do not constitute political communications pursuant to Wisconsin
Statutes Chapter 11 and Wisconsin Administrative Code GAB 1.28, and are not subject to
campaign finance registration and reporting requirements. This determination is based upon the
following findings of the Board:

1. The advertisements contained terms enumerated in GAB 1.28(3)(a), Wis. Adm. Code, or their
functional equivalents. Specifically, the advertisements used the terms “vote for,” and “cast our
ballots for,” but did not clearly identify a candidate or candidate’s campaign, rather urged that
votes be cast for “candidates who” subscribed to certain positions on issues described in the
advertisements.

2. The advertisements were published during the period beginning 60 days preceding the
General Election and ending on the date of that election.

3. The advertisements did not refer to the personal qualities, character, or fitness of any

identified candidate, though the advertisements made a value statement regarding the personal
qualities, character, and fitness of candidates generally.
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4. The advertisements declared the Association’s position on certain issues without reference to
a specific candidate. However, when coupled with the Association’s general reputation, a reader
could infer the Association’s support for a certain candidate or class of candidates.

5. Given that the advertisements did not identify any specific candidate, candidate’s campaign,
political party, or particular political race, one reasonable interpretation of the advertisements is
that the Association was issuing an appeal to voters to consider the individual voter’s own

positions on the stated issues when casting their votes for candidates on their respective ballots.

6. Another reasonable interpretation of the advertisements is that, because they did not identify
any candidate, campaign, or political party, they were communications to pique the interest of
readers in order to attract them to the Association. In other words, the advertisements were
intended to call attention to, and generate interest in, the Association itself and its mission and
goals.

7. Although the advertisements did not identify specific candidates, given the issues identified in
the advertisements as well as the general reputation of the Association, readers could make
assumptions or inferences to draw conclusions as to the candidates the Association supported.
This interpretation would conclude that the advertisements were veiled communications urging
votes for specific candidates who maintained comparable positions on the stated issues.

8. Because the Association’s advertisements are susceptible of more than one reasonable
interpretation, and some of the interpretations would establish that the advertisements were
something other than an appeal to vote for or against a specific candidate, the advertisements
were not communications that were made for a political purpose under the provisions of Chapter
11, Wis. Stats., and GAB 1.28, Wis. Adm. Code. '

Based upon the above Findings, the Board determines that there is no reasonable suspicion that

the Billy Graham Evangelistic Association’s advertisements violated Wis. Stat. §11.05 or GAB
1.28, Wis. Adm. Code, and dismisses the complaint of the Freedom from Religion Foundation.
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State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board
In the Matter of

)

) PRELIMINARY FINDINGS OF FACT
) AND CONCLUSIONS
)
)

Shelly Moore GAB Case #2011-07

Background. The Government Accountability Board received a verified complaint
dated June 22, 2011 from the Republican Party of Wisconsin alleging that Shelly Moore,
a candidate for the State Senate, had used the e-mail system of the Ellsworth Community
School District in connection with her campaign in violation of §11.24, Wisconsin
Statutes. That section prohibits the making or accepting of a political contribution from
property belonging to another. A copy of the complaint and e-mails are attached.

The Board authorized an investigation into this matter on August 2, 2011.

Statutes. Section 11.24 (1), Wisconsin Statutes, provides:

No person may, directly or indirectly, make any contribution other than from
funds or property belonging to the contributor. No person may, directly or
indirectly, furnish funds or property to another person for the purpose of
making a contribution in other than the person’s own name. No person may
intentionally accept or receive any contribution made in violation of this
subsection.

Findings of Fact. An investigation was conducted by two members of the Board’s staff
~ Jonathan Becker and Nathan Judnic. In response to a request for all e-mails that may
have had a political content, Ms. Moore indicated that she believed we had all “salient”
e-mails attached to the complaint and that she had no others.

Mr. Becker and Mr. Judnic interviewed Ms. Moore by telephone on April 30, 2012, In-
that interview, Ms. Moore stated that she was not a candidate for the Legislature at the
time the questioned e-mails were sent. She stated that, although a number of individuals
were talking to her about a possible candidacy, she was not initiating any such
discussions. She stated that she did not decide to become a candidate until April 29,
2011 as a result of a meeting with local Democrats and was not trying to seek support
before that time. Ms. Moore noted that, in the only e-mail she sent that related to her
possible candidacy, she said it was “up in the air.” That e-mail was sent on Sunday,
April 3,2011.

Ms. Moore further pointed out that the February and March e-mails pertained to political
activity in which her union was involved. Ms. Moore stated that she was active in the
union and had held a number of offices in the union. Ms. Moore stated that, under the

" union contract, teachers were permitted to use the school’s e-mail system for any union
business, including political activities and promoting events such as rallies. Ms. Moore
noted that, for the most part, she was responding to e-mails that were sent to her, and they
concerned planned union events.

In an e-mail of March 10, 2011, Ms. Moore wrote, “We are not supposed to use school e-
mail, but since all of our rights are being taken away, I don’t frankly care.” Ms. Moore
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told us that that was not true, that the restriction only applied to actual candidacies.
School district policy provides that the district expects professional staff to “refrain from
using position or public property for partisan political or religious purposes.” The policy
is attached to the complaint. The teachers’ contract provides:

‘The Association and its representatives shall have the right to use school facilities and
equipment including computers, email, copy machines, and fax machines when such
equipment is not ptherwise in use. The Association may also use the district mail
service, teachers’ mailboxes, and teachers' workroom and lounge bulletin boards for
communication to teachers. ’ ’

Ms. Moore stated that she'had been subjected to no discipline by the school district as a
result of any of her activities. :

Conclusions. Based on the evidence obtained, the Government Accountability Board
finds there is not probable cause to believe that Ms. Moore’s use of the school e-mail
system amounted to a campaign contribution to her campaign for office, or a campaign
contribution to any other political committee contrary to §11.24, Wisconsin Statutes. Ms.
Moore does not appear to be a local public official subject to the Ethics Code for Local
Public Officials. Whether Ms. Moore violated school district policy is not within the
Board’s jurisdiction.

These Preliminary Findings of Fact and Conclusions approved unanimously by the six

members of the State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board meeting on June 8,
2012.
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STATE OF WISCONSIN GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD

The Verified Complaint of

REPUBLICAN PARTY OF WISCONSIN

STEPHAN THOMPSON,
Complainant

VERIFIED
Against COMPLAINT
SHELLY MOORE,
Respondent

The Republican Party of Wisconsin, by and through its representative, Stephan Thompson,
brings this verified complaint against Shelly Moore and alleges as follows:

1. Complainant Stephan Thompson is a resident of the State of Wisconsin, and is a qualified
elector and is the Executive Director of the Republican Party of Wisconsin with a mailing
address of 148 East Johnson Street, Madison, Wisconsin 53703.

2, Respondent Shelly Moore resides at 350 Nicole Lane #6B, River Falls, Wisconsin 54022
and is, as of the date of this Verified Complaint, a candidate for the 10" Senate District of
Wisconsin and, upon information and belief, a public school teacher with the Ellsworth
Community School District.

3. Upon information and belief, Ms. Moore engaged in the use of official school district
email to conduct campaign and political activities between February 2011 and April
2011.

4. The exhibits attached hereto are printouts of email exchanges between Ms. Moore and

other individuals obtained through an open records request of Ms. Moore’s school district
email account.

5. Upon information and belief, several of the campaign emails sent through Ms. Moore’s
school email account occurred during paid school time.

6. Exhibit A is an email exchange between Ms. Moore and another individual between April
1,2011 and April 3, 2011 in which Ms. Moore’s candidacy for the 10™ Senate District is
duscussed.

7. Exhibit B shows repeated email exchanges from March 5,2011, March 8, 2011 and

March 21, 2011 in which Ms. Moore uses her school district email address to discuss the
circulation of recall petitions against Senator Sheila Harsdorf and other State Senators.

Case 2:14-cv-00139-RTR Filed 04/15/14 Page 24 of 95 Document 105 p_ 24




8. Exhibit C is another email exchange over Ms. Moore’s school district email on the
morning of Friday, March 11, 2011 to discuss the organization of political activity.

9. Exhibit D is an email sent on the morning of Wednesday, February 16, 2011 from Ms.
Moore’s school email address to a group of “Fellow Dems” to solicit participation in a
political event.

10.  Exhibit E is a copy of the staff ethics policy of the Ellsworth Community School District
" which explicitly requires teachers to “refrain from using position or public property...for
partisan political or religious purposes,” and a copy of Ms. Moore’s teacher’s contract in

which she certifies that she will abide by the policies of the school district.

11.  Exhibit F includes 4 March 10, 2011 email sent from Ms. Moore’s school email address
in which she acknowledges the impropriety of her continued use of school email to
conduct political and campaign activity, stating, ‘“We are not supposed to use school
email, but since all of our rights are being taken away, I don’t frankly care.”

12.  The Wisconsin Public Purpose Doctrine prohibits the use of government resources for a
non-public purpose such as campaign activity.

13.  Chapter 11 of the Wisconsin Statutes prohibits candidates from unlawfully accepting
anything of value for campaign purposes. Wis. Stats. §§11.05 & 11.24.

14,  Upon information and belief, by using her public school email account during paid school
time to conduct campaign activity, Ms. Moore knowingly used government resources for
private purposes in violation of Wisconsin law. ’

The above-referenced activity by Ms. Moore violates Wisconsin law. To wit: Ms, Moore
utilized government resources for a private purpose in violation of the Wisconsin Public Purpose
Doctrine and accepted the benefit of government resources for her campaign in violation of
Chapter 11 of the Wisconsin Statutes.

WHEREFORE, Complainant prays that the Government Accountability Board commence an
investigation into the actions of Respondant in regard to her activities; commence an action in
civil court with respect to any civil violations; refer any criminal violations to the appropriate
prosecutorial authorities; and render such other relief that the Government Accountability Board
may deem just and equitable.

Dated this 11 day of June, 2011 at Madison, Wisconsin.

S

Stephan Thompson
REPUBLICAN PARTY OF WISCONSIN
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CERTIFICATION

I, Stephan Thompson, being first duly sworn upon oath, state that I personally read the above
complaint and that the above allegations are true and correct based on my personal knowledge
and, as to those allegations stated on information and belief, I believe them to be true.

==

Stephan Thompson

State of Wisconsin )
) ss
County of Dane 2
\\\m“ ””’k;

Sworn to bef@t@b‘-ﬁﬂWday of June 2011.

to Admlms&,@athy BLY > $
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Or, is permanent.
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Journal 2.1
4
From: Shelly Moore _
Sent: Sunday, April 03, 2011 4:28 PM
To: 2
Subject: RE: Gongratulations

Hal. Well. we'll see. | still think it's up in theair..

Did miuch work with the’ state Dems this weekend inregard to the recalls; however, and things.are looking SO0 goodin
many locations: Thatis the news that is truly excitingt

From: &
Sent: Saturday, April 02,
To: Shelly Moore

Suhbject: Congratulations

2011:12:34 PM

Shelly,

I hear congratulations may be in order. The rumor at the Sommerset rally today, where | spoke, was

that you had been chosen as either The Candiddate or WEAC's candidate of choice. Either way

congratulations.

Warmly;

Sent: Fi, Aprl 1, 2011 138:17 PM

Subject: Re; Please-call
Shelly,

We really need to talk. The Western Wisconsin Dems are talking about vetting 8 or candidates
starting on April 18th;- 1 he!p lead.churches through the pastoral hiring process and can assure you:
that their proposed process is going to lead to pandemonium and total gridlock. Younever propose
more than three candidates to.a large group of people. Theyare determined to-loose this election
before it has even been tnggered

The State Dems, Polk county Dems, Bumett county Dems and the old guard of the St Croix Dems all
seemed to be in agreement earlier in‘the week onthis. I'mtrying to set up a meeting with.the
potennal candidates and those that are making this decision because | simply cannot see a candidate
worth their political wesght being willing to wait until the end of April-or beginning of May before their
‘able to start campaigning. Maybe the two of us speaking with a united voice can talk some sense

into them.

Hope your interview went well today. Anyway, please callme a "

Tharks,
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From: €588 i

Toi Shelly Moore <moores@ellsworth. k12 wius>
Sent: Mon, March 28, 2011 6:30:15PM
Subject: Re: Please call "

Shelly,
Sorry | missed your call today. | hit the wrrong key and lost your message with-your number. Could
you -email me your cell or home phone?

Thanks,

Froms Shelly Moore <moores@ellswo
To -
‘Sent: Mon, March 28, 2011 8:55:53.AM
Subject? RE: Please.call

JK12.wlus>

‘Sorry - just got this message - 'l call you later today.

Shelly:

L

From: @
‘Sent. Sunday, March 4
To: Shelly Moore
Subject: Please call

Shelly;

I was wondering if you wotild' be able to give me.a call?2 Htis ratherimportant. My cell is&

Thanks
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Journal 2.1

From: Shelly Moore

Sent: Monday, March 21, 2011 10:19 AM
To: 3
Subject:

seriouslyl That is awesomel

We have 8 that we are working on., I am pumped if some already have enough signatures!

From: SRR i A
Sent: Monday, Maech 21; 2011 11:16 AWM.
To: Shelly Moore

Subject:

Just bheard from reglonal afl-cio staff that we have targeted 5-6 races in WI for recall and
already have 2 of 3 ready Lo go.
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Journal 2.1

From; Shelly Moore

Sent: Saturday, March 05, 2011 9:31 AM
To: = 3
Subject:.

yes: -She is eligible and ) belleve papers dre being circulated starting today.

From: i
Sent: Frday; March 04, 2011 °8:21 AM
Toz Shelly.Maore

Subject: Shella Harsdorf

Do we really have'a chance at recalling Sheila?
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Journal 2.1

From: Shelly Moore

Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2011 11:39 AM
Tol B

Subject: , RE: Recall

And that's why this matters - because shelia, et al., aren’'t thinking sbout the real people
these bad laws affect.

From:

‘Sent: Tuesday, March 98, 2011 11:31 AM
“To: :Shelly Moore

Subject: RE: Recall

Thanks. Do you think I should sign before or after I ask her to come back to school to meet

It is nothing personal against.her, but I have to do what I think is best this Ellsworth
area.. Let's face it. I have lived her all my life and this area .and thé people in It mean a
1ot to me.

Ellsworth Community School District
P.0, Box 1500
Ellsworth;, WI 54011

From: Shelly Moore
sent: Tuesd March 08, 2011 11:29 AW
To: . S

Subject: RE: Recall

they ‘are being circulated. Not sure by whom Pight now. T will try to find out.

Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2011 11:27 AM
Toz Shelly Moore
Subject: Recall

How do we sign Senator Harsdorf’s recall papers?

E1Ysworth Community Schaol District
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Journal 2.1

From: Shelly Moore
Sent:

S Tor
Subject:

send this - there are ways to get involved with political events. this weekend. If you wish
to. know detalls, please contact me.

From: : ]
Sents Fri ay, March 11, 2011 9:37 AM
Ta: Shelly Moore
Subjects RE: RE:

vqted no... Jet me think how I can do this.

-;ﬁa-Orxglnal Messager~~=«»
From: Shelly Moore
3 March 11, 2011 9133 AM

Subjects RE: RE:

I vote yes,

From: §
Sent: Friday;

To: shelly Roore,
Subject:s FW: RE:

Can T send this out to WCEA members?

10 AM or 2 PM at Earth Angels Coffee House (nedr post office). We will have training and
provide materials. '

Please ‘circulate www.recallharsdorf.com as the resource for ongoing events. There is 4ls0 3
twitter feed and facebook page. ’

Thanks. oh 50 much.

Sub;ect’ RE: RE
Date: Fri, 11 Mar 2911 14:22:11 +0009
Good Morning @

did -a great job last night.
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Wondering where and when people should meet if they want To come to River Falls on Saturday
to learn how to do the “job.”

“From: :
Sent: Thupsday, March 18, 2811 2: 61 PM

To:
Subject: ‘REs

pate: Thu, 10 Mar 2011 19:22:45 +0000
Seunds good!

‘March 18, 2011 1:15 PM

Thank you. We will either be sendxng a retired teacher or a retired railroad worker; but
either one of them know the lay of the land.

The meeting will be at 4pm at the Ellsworth Middle School,

Thanks; .
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Journal 2.1

From: Shelly Moore

Sent: Wednesday, February 16, 2011 9:32 AM

To: | wcea

Subject: TODAY: River Falls Rally to Protecl Public Workers Rights

Fellow Dems - As most of you know, Governor Walker’s “budget” goes far beyond finances and
strip public workers of their right to negotiate working conditions and wages. A teachers
group is organizing this rally to demonstrate to Senator Harsdorf the area’s disapproval:

KEEP WISCONSIN MOVING FORWARD:
A RALLY TO PROTECT OUR RIGHTS

Wednesday, February 16
5:00 - 6:00 pm
Falcon’s Nest
University Center

U4 River Falls Campus

HELP US SEND A MESSAGE TO SENATOR HARDSDORF:
VOTE “NO” ON THE GOVERNOR’S ATTACK ON WORKERS’ RIGHTS & OUR COMMUNITIES

Candlelight vigil to follow the rally.

Directions: The rally will be in the FALCON’S NEST room in the UNIVERSITY CENTER.

The Falcon’s Nest is on the ground floor, just to the right as you enter the front of the
building. If you enter from the rear, near parking lot F, walk through to the front, and go
left. There will be plenty of signs to direct you to the rally.

Parking after 4:36 P, should not be a problem either on the main streets or in the parking
lots. Parking is available, but limited, in parking lots F, U, G, and N behind the
University Center.

If you’re parking on the main street - Cascade Avenue ~ the University Center is a short walk
through campus.

For no more emails from us go ‘
here<httg:[[mlist.orchidsuites.net[lists[lt.QhQ?1d=KkoEBNNRVABTAB4MCVZXSgMGBlJR)

~
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Management Ellsworth Community School |
Documents
Bylaws & Policies

Bylaws & Poiicias
Administrative
Guidelines

Forms

State Goverament 3210 - STAFF ETHICS

[ eow e

An effective educational program requires the senices of men
and women of integrity, high ideals, and human
understanding. To maintain and promote these essentials, the
Board of Education expects all professional staff members to
maintain high standards in their working relationships, and in
the performance of their professional duties, to:

o

Search lon

2,

A. recognize basic dignities of alt individuals with
whom they interact in the performance of duties;

B. represent accurately their qualifications;

C. exercise due care to protect the mental and
physical safety of students, colleagues, and
subordinates;

D. seek and apply the knowledge and skills
appropriale to assigned responsibilities;

E. keep in confidence legally-confidential
information as they may secure;

F. ensure that their actions or those of another on
their behalf are not made with specific intent of
advancing private economic interests;

G. awid accepting anything of value offered by
another for the purpose of influencing judgment;

H. refrain from using position or public property, or
permitting another person to use an employee's
position or public property for partisan political or
religious purposes. This will in no way limit
constitutionally or legally protected rights as a
citizen.
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ELLSWORTH COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT STEP ON SCHEDULE 10.85 MA
Ellsworth, Wisconsin 54011
TENTATIVE ASSIGNMENT
TEACHER’S CONTRACT
Teacher

IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and between the Board of Education of the Ellsworth Community School District, Ellsworth, Wisconsin
and Michelle Moore , a professionally trained educator legally qualified in the State of Wiscounsin,
hereinaficr designated “teacher”, that the teacher is to teach and assume responsibilities of co-curricular activities in said schools as
directed by the Superintendent or Principals or Board of Education for a term of 190 Days (including school days
indicated in Wisconsin Statute 115.01 (10), pre-service and in-service days for a sum of 3 *See Note Below®  commencing on ot
about the 23rd day of August , 2010, and for such service properly rendered the School Board is to pay the

amount due according to this contract in twenty-four installments.

#**NOTE: Sslaries will be updated when the Teacher’s union agreement is settled***

IT IS FURTHER AGREED, that the above salary shall be increased by compensation for extra-curricular assignments. Extra curricular
assignments will be on a separate contract.

IT IS FURTHER AGREED, that this contract is made and shall remain subject to the provisions Sections 118.21 and 118.22 and

other applicable provisions of Title XTV of the Wisconsin Statutes, as revised, and to the rules, regulations and policies of the School
Board now existing and as may be hercinafter enacted and the Teacher agrees to, in all respects, abide by and comply with the same. ’
This contract is specifically made subject to and will be amended and modified to comply with the terms and provisions of any applicable
collective bargaining agreement between the Board of Education and representatives of the collective bargaining unit which represents
the “teacher” entered into subsequent to the tender of this contract to the teacher. This individual contract is subject to amendment by 2

subsequent collective bargaining agrcement.

ot

This contract may be modificd or terminated at any time during the term hereof by the mutual written agreement of the pasties hereto,

This contract is not valid unless signed and returned by the teacher on or before __April 15,2010 .

Dated this 15" day of March , 2010 .

President ) Treasurer

Clerk “ANG )Luo 2 & Nanolavy  Superintendent

I, the undersigned teacher, represent to the School Board that I am not now under contract of employment with
another school district for any period covered by this contract. I hereby accept the provisions as set forth in this

::r:a::e // M /%rf, Date Signed —0 5/ 30 // 2

aaaess 2 250 poole L bt Ruec falls LT SY5AR

Date of Birth // / ﬂ / 7' ”/ Social Security Numb-

.OFFICE USE ONLY - Date Received: _
- ' rir‘\' ?‘
Revised 2/16/2010
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Joumal 2.1

From: Shelly Mocre

Sent: Thursday, March 10,2011 11:16 AM
To: v : .
Subject:

I appreciate you contacting me, I agree - the situation is both dire and urgent.

We have scheduled 'an emergency union migeting for today at 4 and will have recall papers
there. And will continue fo work throughout today and tomorrow to get support staff and
other persopel on board: as well,

We are not supposed to use :school email, but since all of our ripghts are being taken away, I
don't frankly care.

Thank you,
Shelly Moore

Yo: Shelly Moore
Subject: Efforts in Ellsworth

Shelly,

You did not solicit this email so please forward it to your home email if school policy does
not allow;

“To the point-

1. I have family in Ellsworth, graduated from Ellsworth; and support Ellsworth teachers.
2. I 1ive in Hudson ‘and I ami cuppently involved in: Recall efforts hepra.

3. I will be attending a St. Croix Dem' meeting in Roberts tonight so let me know if you
need anything brought up at that meeting at 7:eepPm.

4. Most importantly, we need to organize the Ellsworth teachers so that a huge recall
effort can be pushed in Ellsworth and Pierce County next week when téachers are off for
spring break.  This needs to be coordinated quickly, via email to Ellsworth teachers (if
possible) before the end of tomorrow or they might be off the email ‘grid' for over a week.
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5. If needed T can take off work to help in any way I can. Perhaps there are efforts
already under way, but I didn't want to lose a single minute, Our recall clock is ticking.
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2011-13 Sandy Pasch for Senate Campaign

2011-25 Sandy Pasch and Citizen Action of WI

Mr. Becker provided an oral and written report. Staff recommends dismissal of both
complaints. The first complaint was about Ms. Pasch’s picture appearing on the cover of
the Shepherd Express weekly newspaper, which the campaign did not pay for, but was
an editorial endorsement. The second complaint was about coordination because Ms.
Pasch sits on the board of Wisconsin Citizen Action, which made independent
expenditures in support of her campaign. Minutes of Citizen Action’s board meeting
indicate Ms. Pasch left the room when the independent expenditure was being discussed.
MOTION: To dismiss the complaints in cases 2011-13 and 2011-25, with staff to issue
findings consistent with Board action. Moved by Judge Cane, seconded by Judge Vocke.
Motion carried unanimously.
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State of Wisconsin \ Government Accountability Board

212 East Washington Avenue, 3™ Floor
Post Office Box 7984

Madison, W1 53707-7984

Vaice (608) 265-8005

Fas  {608) 267-0500

E-moil: gal@wisconsin.gov
htip://pab.wi.gov

JUDGE THOMAS H. BARLAND
Chaimperson

KEVIN J. KENNEDY
Director and General Counsel

MEMORANDUM

DATE: For the December 13, 2011 Board meeting
TO: The Government Accountability Board
FROM: Jonathan Becker

SUBJECT: In the Matter of Sandy Pasch for Senate, GAB Case #2011-13, and In the Matter of
Sandy Pasch and Wisconsin Citizen Action. GAB Case #2011-25

In the Matter of Sandy Pasch for Senate, GAB Case #2011-13

The Government Accountability Board received a verified complaint, dated July 14, 2011 from
Wisconsin GrandSons of Liberty, Inc. alleging that Sandy Pasch for Senate ranan ad in a
Milwaukee weekly, the Shepherd Express; distributed a flyer for an event sponsored by Grass
Roots North Shore; and posted materials on Facebook and another website without including a
proper attribution statement identifying the sponsor of the communication in violation of
§11.30(2)(b), Wisconsin Statutes. At its August 2 meeting, the Board authorized an
investigation into this matter.

I spoke with Sandy Pasch who stated that her campaign had not purchased an ad in Shepherd’s
Express. I also spoke to Lou Fortis, the owner of Shepherd’s Express, who confirmed this and
stated that the front page picture and vote for Sandy Pasch message was an editorial
endorsement. Finally, there is no report in her campaign finance filings that Ms. Pasch’s
campaign made any disbursements to Shepherd Express.

I also spoke with Jackie Boynton, Ms. Pasch’s campaign treasurer. She had no memory of the
campaign ever purchasing space in the Shepherd Express and no memory of the campaign
creating a flyer for an event sponsored by Grass Roots North Shore. She stated that Grass
Roots North Shore was a group of citizens active in campaigns.

In the Matter of Sandy Pasch and Wisconsin Citizen Action, GAB Case #2011-25

The Government Accountability Board received a verified complaint dated August 1, 2011
from the Republican Party of Wisconsin alleging that Sandy Pasch, a candidate for the State
Senate, and Citizen Action of Wisconsin, Inc. had improperly coordinated campaign
expenditures by Citizen Action in violation of §11.06 (7), Wisconsin Statutes. If true, Citizen
Action would also have violated §11.38, Wisconsin Statutes, (prohibiting contributions by
corporations) and Ms. Pasch and Citizen Action may also have violated campaign contribution
limits. The basis for the complaint is that Ms. Pasch was a member of the Board of Directors
of Citizen Action while she was a candidate. At its August 2 meeting, the Board authorized an
investigation into this matter.

I spoke with Robert Kraig, Executive Director, and Matt Brusky, Deputy Director, of Citizen
Action of Wisconsin. Mr. Kraig stated that the Citizen Action Board meets only four times a
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year. At its May 13, 2011 meeting, staff requested the general authority to participate in the
upcoming recall elections. Mr. Kraig state that the Board gave staff that authority but there
was no discussion about which races the organization would be involved in. According to Mr.
Kraig, the Board does not “micromanage” and leaves most decisions to staff. Staff made the
decision to make independent expenditures on behalf of Ms. Pasch.

Both Mr. Kraig and Mr. Brusky stated that Ms. Pasch left the room where the Board meeting
was being held before the question of participation in the recalls was brought up. The minutes
of the May meeting reflect this. Both Mr. Kraig and Mr. Brusky also stated that they had no
conversations about the campaign with Ms. Pasch or anyone from her campaign until after the
election. ’

Ms. Pasch confirmed that she left the Citizen Action Board meeting before any discussions
about recall campaign activity and that she had no conversations with staff or other Board
members about her campaign.

Jackie Boynton has been Ms, Pasch’s campaign treasurer for 4 years — since Ms. Pasch’s first
run for the Assembly. Ms. Boynton was also on the Board of Directors of Citizen Action of
Wisconsin. She stated that she attended the May Board meeting and did not leave the room.
She said the Board was asked to approve the organization’s involvement in recall races. She
thought that Ms. Pasch’s race was discussed. She stated that she was never involved in any
discussions about specific activities or expenditures in Ms. Pasch’s race with any staff or
directors (other than Ms. Pasch) of Citizen Action.

Recommendation
Staff recommends dismissal of both complaints.

There is no evidence that Ms. Pasch’s campaign purchased any ads in the Shepherd Express. It
is true that there was no disclaimer on her Facebook page, but our approach in instances
involving lack of disclaimers on web sites is simply to inform individuals of the obligation to
create a disclaimer and to post it. The lack of disclaimer on the flyer appears de minimus and
it is unclear who actually paid for it.

There is no evidence that Citizen Action of Wisconsin acted in cooperation or consultation
with Ms. Pasch, Ms. Boynton, or anyone else associated with the Pasch campaign on any
independent disbursements. In my view, Ms. Boynton’s presence at the May meeting does not
amount to consultation or cooperation. Ms. Boynton’s statement that the Pasch race may have
been mentioned at the May Board meeting does not comport with the statements made by Mr.
Kraig or Mr. Brusky. Moreover, Ms. Boynton’s memory generally struck me as unreliable as
she remembered almost nothing else.
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2011-15 Friends of Dave Hansen, et al

Jonathan Becker prepared a written report. Mr. Becker gave an oral report about a
“RICO” complaint filed against Senator Dave Hansen alleging improper coordination of
political ads, the basis of which is their similarity. Staff recommends dismissal.
Discussion of how to handle frivolous complaints.

MOTION: Dismiss the complaint against Senator Hansen and warn complainant Dave
Boyce about filing a frivolous complaint. Moved by Judge Vocke, seconded by Judge
Nichol. Motion carried unanimously.

Case 2:14-cv-00139-RTR Filed 04/15/14 Page 43 of 95 Document 105 p. 40



State of Wisconsin \ Government Accountability Board

212 East Washington Avenue, 3™ Flaor
Post Office Box 7984

Madison, W1 53707-7934

Voice (608) 266-8005

Fax  (608) 267-0500

E-muil: gab@wisconsin.gov
hetp:/igabavi.gov

JUDGE THOMAS [i. BARLAND
Chairperson

KEVIN J. KENNEDY
Disector and General Counsel

MEMORANDUM

DATE: For the August 2, 2011 Board Meeting

TO: Members, Government Accountability Board
FROM: Jonathan Becker

SUBJECT: Friends of Dave Hansen, et al., 2011-15

On July 18, 2011, the Government Accountability Board received a “RICO” complaint
(attached) alleging that Friends of Dave Hansen and other groups violated campaign finance
laws by improperly coordinating political ads. The basis for the complaint is the similarity of
the ads. Without more, there does not seem to be any basis for an investigation.

Recommendation: That the Board dismiss the complaint because there is no reasonable suspicion that
a violation of the ethics code has occurred or is occurring.
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State of Wisconsin _ Government Accountability Board
In the Matter of

PRELIMINARY FINDINGS OF
FACT AND CONCLUSIONS

Holperin for Senate, and

)
)
)
Keep Our North Strong PAC)
)
Jim Holperin )

GAB Case #2008-40

Background. The Government Accountability Board received a complaint
suggesting improper coordination between Keep Our North Strong PAC, Hol-
perin for Senate, and Jim Holperin. The allegation is based on the fact that
Roger Breske is the sole funder of the PAC and also was an active member of
Mr. Holperin’s Senate campaign. The PAC paid for ads supporting Mr.
Holperin

Preliminary Findings of Fact. The Government Accountability Board
adopts the attached Report of Investigation as its Preliminary Findings of
Fact in this matter. The Board does not possess or have knowledge of any
information which would tend to refute or discredit these findings.

Applicable Statutes and Legal Standard. The investigation's purpose
was to learn if there is probable cause to believe that Keep Our North Strong
PAC, Holperin for Senate, and Jim Holperin violated §11.06 (4) or (7) or
§11.26, Wisconsin Statutes, through the furnishing and receipt of an in-kind
campaign contribution. This could have occurred if there had been improper
coordination between the PAC and the Holperin campaign.

Coordination is sufficient to treat a communication (or the expenditure for it)
as a contribution if the communication is made at the request or suggestion
of the campaign (i.e., the candidate or agents of the candidate). In the
absence of a request or suggestion from the campaign, if the cooperation,
consultation or coordination between the two is such that the candidate or his
agents can exercise control over, or there has been substantial discussion or
negotiation between the campaign and the spender over, a communication's:
(1) content; (2) timing; (3) location, mode, or intended audience (e.g., choice
between newspaper or radio advertisement); or (4) "volume" (e.g., number of
copies of printed materials or frequency of media spots). Substantial
discussion or negotiation is such that the candidate and the spender emerge
as partners or joint venturers in the expressive expenditure, but the
candidate and spender need not be equal partners.

Findings. The Government Accountability Board concludes there is no
probable cause to believe that Keep Our North Strong PAC, Holperin for
Senate, or Jim Holperin violated §11.06 (4) or (7) or §11.26, Wisconsin
Statutes in connection with the Fall 2008 campaign.
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The State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board on the unanimous,
affirmative vote of the six members meeting on June 22, 2009, adopts these
preliminary findings of fact and conclusions.

STATE OF WISCONSIN :
GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY
BOARD

By: Michael Brennan, Chair
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State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board
In the Matter of

REPORT OF
INVESTIGATION

Holperin for Senate, and

)
)
)
Keep Our North Strong PAC)
)
Jim Holperin )

GAB Case #2008-40

Background. The Government Accountability Board received a complaint
from Keith Gilkes suggesting improper coordination between Keep Our North
Strong PAC, Holperin for Senate, and Jim Holperin. The allegation was
based on the fact that Roger Breske was the sole funder of the PAC and also
was active in Mr. Holperin’s Senate campaign. The PAC paid for ads
supporting Mr. Holperin.

Purpose of Investigation. The investigation's purpose was to learn if there
is probable cause to believe that Keep Our North Strong PAC, Holperin for
Senate, and Jim Holperin violated §11.06 (4) or (7) or §11.26, Wisconsin
Statutes, through the furnishing and receipt of an in-kind campaign
contribution.

Legal Standard. Coordination is sufficient to treat a communication (or the
expenditure for it) as a contribution if the communication is made at the
request or suggestion of the campaign (i.e., the candidate or agents of the
candidate). In the absence of a request or suggestion from the campaign, if
the cooperation, consultation or coordination between the two is such that the
candidate or his agents can exercise control over, or there has been
substantial discussion or negotiation between the campaign and the spender
over, a communication's: (1) content; (2) timing; (3) location, mode, or
intended audience (e.g., choice between newspaper or radio advertisement);
or (4) "volume" (e.g., number of copies of printed materials or frequency of
media spots). Substantial discussion or negotiation is such that the
candidate and the spender emerge as partners or joint venturers in the
expressive expenditure, but the candidate and spender need not be equal
partners.

Investigation Activities. The investigation was conducted by Shane Falk
and Jonathan Becker. We interviewed:

Senator Jim Holperin

Former Senator Roger Breske

Mike Tate, founder and director of Keep Our North Strong PAC
Jodi Tesch, the PAC'’s treasurer and Roger Breske’s daughter

Mark Webster, political consultant

Susan Meinholz, former aide to then-Senator Breske, current aide
to Senator Holperin

Case 2:14-cv-00139-RTR Filed 04/15/14 Page 47 of 95 Document 105 P. 44



Investigation Report
GAB Case #2008-40
Page 2

o Elizabeth Novak, aide to Senator Holperin

o Jason Childress, former executive director of the State Senate
Democratic Committee

o Mike Wittenwyler, attorney

We also asked Keith Gilkes whether he possessed any information in
addition to that provided in the complaint. He did not

Findings. Although the interrelationship of the individuals involved with
Senator Holperin’s campaign and Keep Our North Strong PAC provides a
reasonable basis for suspecting the possibility of improper coordination, we
found no evidence of that. Indeed, we found that the individuals involved
were extremely careful to avoid any communications that could lead to an
inference of coordination.

Roger Breske resigned his Senate seat in June 2008 when he was appointed
the Commissioner of Railroads. His campaign committee then had
approximately $76,000. Mr. Breske stated that he told his aide, and
campaign treasurer, Susan Meinholz, to find someone to whom to give the
money and to make sure it was legal. Mr. Breske stated he hoped the money
would go to someone who would use it in his district.

Mike Tate came to learn of the availability of the Breske campaign money.
Mr. Tate was experienced in putting together independent committees to be
involved in campaigns. (Mr. Tate was just elected to be Chair of the State
Democratic Party). Mr. Tate states that he first conferred with Mark
Webster about whether My, Webster was interested in forming an
independent PAC. Mr. Webster told him he was not. Mark Webster
confirmed the phone call. Mr. Webster states that he told Mr. Tate that he
was not interested in obtaining the Breske campaign money and that, while
he was not involved with the Holperin campaign, he wanted to preserve that
option. Mr. Webster states that, as a result, he and Mr. Tate spoke no
further about the matter.

Mr. Tate then consulted with Attorney Mike Wittenwyler about the legality
of contacting Mr. Breske. Mr. Wittenwyler, in turn, conferred with the
Government Accountability Board’s former staff attorney, George Dunst. Mr.
Wittenwyler states that he advised Mr. Tate to contact Ms. Meinholz, rather
than Mxr. Breske.

Mzr. Tate contacted Ms. Meinholz and told her of his idea to form a PAC that
would be involved in races in northern Wisconsin. Ms. Meinholz decided to

provide the money to Mr. Tate's PAC.

Mzy. Tate states that no one ever told him where to spend the money. Ms.
Meinholz states that she never discussed with Mr. Tate how the money would
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Investigation Report
GAB Case #2008-40
Page 3

be used; however, she stated she told Mr. Tate it would be good if the money
was spent in Mr. Breske’s district in support of Mr. Holperin. Mr. Tate and
Ms. Meinholz had two further conversations — one about the appearance of
the transfer of money from the Breske campaign to the Keep Our North
Strong PAC and the other about a possible PAC treasurer.

Mr. Tate states that he never conferred with Mr. Breske or anyone connected
with the Holperin campaign about the campaign or during the campaign.
Mr. Tate asked Jodi Tesch to be the PAC’s treasurer on Ms. Meinholz’s
recommendation. Ms. Tesch states that she asked her father if that would be
okay and he said yes, if Ms. Meinholz approved it. Ms. Tesch’s only role in
the PAC was to sign campaign finance reports.

Mr. Breske states he never talked to Mr. Tate during the campaign and had
no information about the Keep Our North Strong PAC. Myr. Breske states
that he became aware of the PAC only when he saw a PAC ad on television.
Mr. Breske played only a limited role in Senator Holperin's campaign —
appearing with him at a few campaign events and authorizing the use of his
name as endorsing Mr. Holperin.

Senator Holperin states that he had met Mr. Tate only once, while Senator
Holperin was at the Department of Tourism. Senator Holperin had no
subsequent contact or communication with Mr. Tate and had no contact or
communication with anyone associated with the PAC. Senator Holperin
states that he never spoke to Ms. Meinholz about the PAC, although Ms.
Meinholz had told him of the Breske campaign money and that it would be
used to assist his campaign. Senator Holperin states that when he asked
Jason Childress of the State Senate Democratic Committee about the PAC,
Myr. Childress said he would not tell him anything.

Susan Meinholz states that she never spoke to Mr. Tate or to anyone about
Keep Our North Strong PAC activities and had no further contact with Mr.
Tate after the fund transfer from the Breske campaign committee to the
PAC. Ms. Meinholz states that she had no conversations with Mr. Childress
about PAC activities.

Elizabeth Novak was assigned to assist the Holperin campaign by Mr.
Childress and the State Senate Democratic Committee. She states that she
never spoke with Mr. Childress about Mike Tate or the PAC.

Jason Childress states that he had discussions with Ms. Meinholz about
disposition of the Breske campaign funds after Mr. Breske announced he
would resign and not seek reelection. M. Childress states they talked in
generalities about options for divesting the funds, including the possibility of
contributing the money to an independent group. Mr. Childress states that
they talked about the leap of faith such a donation would require because one
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Investigation Report
GAB Case #2008-40
Page 4

could not know how an independent group will apply the money or whether
its message would be good or bad.

Mr. Childress states that Mr. Webster had told him that he was not
interested in forming an independent group to support the Holperin
campaign but that Mike Tate might be. Mr. Childress states that M.
Webster advised him not to speak with Myr. Tate about the Holperin
campaign.

Mpr. Childress states that at some point during the campaign he learned that
an independent group was doing ads in favor of the Holperin campaign. Mr.
Childress states that he never talked to Mr. Tate about the Breske campaign
funds or about ads for Holperin or anything regarding the Holperin
campaign. Mr. Childress states that the State Senate Democratic Committee
had a strict policy of having “absolutely no discussion” between a candidate’s
operation and any independent group. Mr. Childress states that, although he
assumed that Keep Our North Strong PAC had some of Mxr. Breske’s money,
he did not receive confirmation of that until “after the election when the
Republicans griped” about the PAC’s late filing of the oath of independent
expenditures (for which the PAC earlier paid a $500 forfeiture).

Mr. Childress states that he had discussions frequently with Senator
Holperin during the campaign, including about third party ads. Mr.
Childress did not recall Senator Holperin asking about Keep Our North
Strong PAC but states he told Senator Holperin numerous times to have no
contact with independent groups for fear of legal consequences.

Submitted June 15, 2009 by:
Shane Falk, Staff Attorney

Jonathan Becker, Administrator
Division of Ethics & Accountability
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2008-12 Wisconsin Education Association Council

MOTION: Adopt preliminary findings and close the matter. Moved by Nichol, seconded
by
Myse. Motion carried unanimously.
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_State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board
In the Matter of

)
) PRELIMINARY FINDINGS OF
) FACT AND CONCLUSIONS
Wisconsin Education )
)

Association Council GAB Case #2008-12

Background. The Government Accountability Board received information that
on March 31, 2008, the following voicemail message was received by an
employee of the Wisconsin Department of Justice at his state office:

Hello, this is Mary Bell, WEAC President. | am calling WEAC mem-
bers like you to urge you to exercise your civic duty to vote in the
spring general election on April 1. Our recommended candidate for
State Supreme Court is Justice Louis Butler. Justice Butler's record is
one of consistently supporting fair treatment of employees and pro-
tecting the well being of children. In addition, he has been key in
building collegiality on the Supreme Court, thereby producing well rea-
soned decisions. Please join me in supporting Justice Louis Butler for
State Supreme Court on April 1*. Thank you. :

The recipient, Dean F. Stensberg, Executive Assistant at the Department of Jus-
tice, has indicated that he is not a member of the Wisconsin Education
Association Council ("WEAC").

-Preliminary Findings of Fact. Based on its investigation, the Government
Accountability Board finds the following:

1. According to WEAC, WEAC paid for robocalls in support of Louis Butler in
the 2008 Supreme Court race. The calls were made by contracted ven-
dors to phone numbers of WEAC members provided to the vendors.

2. WEAC states that member records are updated yearly by local teacher
unions and provided to WEAC in Madison.

3. According to WEAC, it did not purchase or use any other list for making
calls.

4. The call to Mr. Stensberg was made to (608) 267-1932.

5. WEAC's calling list identified that number as belonging to Susan
Anderson.

6. According to records of the Department of Public Instruction, Susan
Anderson was a teacher in Green Bay, Wisconsin for some period of time
until 2005 and a teacher in the Madison, Wisconsin school district in the
2007-2008 school year, the latest year for which the Depariment has
information.

7. Ms. Anderson states that she taught in Wisconsin until 2005, taught in
New York for the 2005-2006 schoql year and returned to Wisconsin for
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the 2006-2007 school year. She is a member of Madison Teachers, Inc.,
a WEAC local.

8. Ms. Anderson states that she returned to Wisconsin with a Sprint cellular
phone number from New York of (607) 267-1932. She states that the
Madison school district recorded this number incorrectly with a “608" area
code, which caused her problems at the time.

Applicable statutes.
Section 11.29 (1), Wisconsin Statutes, provides:

11.29 (1) Nothing in this chapter restricts any corporation, cooperative,
unincorporated cooperative association, or voluntary association other
than a political party or personal campaign committee from making
disbursements for the purpose of communicating only with its mem-
bers, shareholders or subscribers to the exclusion of all.other persons,
with respect to endorsements of candidates, positions on a referen-
dum or explanation of its views or interests, without reporting such
activity. No such corporation, cooperative, or association may solicit
contributions from persons who are not members, shareholders or
subscribers to be used for such purposes.

Section 11.38 (1) (a) 1., Wisconsin Statutes, provides:

11.38 (1) (a) 1. No foreign or domestic corporation, or association
organized under ch. 185 or 193, may make any contribution or dis-
bursement, directly or indirectly, either independently or through any
political party, committee, group, candidate or individual for any
purpose other than to promote or defeat a referendum.

Conclusions. :

The Government Accountability Board concludes that there is no basis for any
further proceeding against the Wisconsin Education Association Council in this
matter. )

The State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board on the unanimous,
affirmative vote of the six members meeting on August 27, 2008, adopts these
preliminary findings of fact and conclusions.

STATE OF WISCONSIN GOVERNMENT
ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD

By Thomas Cane, Chair
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20608-13 Americans for Prosperity
Staff recommended closing the matter.

MOTION: Adopt preliminary findings and close the matter. Moved by Myse,
seconded by Manian. Motion carried unanimously.
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State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board
In the Matter of

)

) PRELIMINARY FINDINGS OF
) FACT AND CONCLUSIONS
)
)

Americans for Prosperity GAB Case #2008-13

Background. The Government Accountability Board received information that in
March 2008 Americans for Prosperity sent the attached letter to Matthias Stelly
at 2113 Chamberiain Avenue, Madison, Wisconsin. Mr. Stelly has been
deceased for 10 years, and the communication was received by the current
occupant at that address, who is not a member of Americans for Prosperity.

Preliminary Findings of Fact. Based on its investigation, and affidavits. . .-
submitted by Mark J. Block and Katie Engdahl, the Government Accountability:.
Board finds the following:

1. Americans for Prosperity Wisconsin is a state chapter of Americans for
Prosperity, Inc. ("AFPI").

2. AFPl was established in 2004 in the District of Columbia by Americans for
Prosperity Foundation, Inc. ("AFPF”), a Delaware corporation.

3. AFPF was previously named Citizens for a Sound Economy Foundation,
Inc.

4. Records of Citizens for a Sound Economy show that Matthias Stelly joined
that organization on November 15, 1994. Members of AFPF (formerly -
Citizens for a Sound Economy) were transferred to AFPI's database when
the latter organization was formed in 2004.

5. Americans for Prosperity Wisconsin's membership list includes members
_of AFP1 who were Wisconsin residents.

8. According to AFPW, the letter in question was mailed only and exclusively
to individuals in the AFPW membership database and AFPW did not
acquire names of individuals from any other databases or lists to whom it
mailed the letter.

7. AFPW states that it removes individuals from its database individuals
whose lefters are returned by the post office.

8. AFPW states it has now removed Mr. Stelly’s name from its membership
database.
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Applicable statutes.
Section 11.29 (1), Wisconsin Statutes, provides:

11.29 (1) Nothing in this chapter restricts any corporation, cooperative,
unincorporated cooperative association, or voluntary association other
than a political party or personal campaign committee from making
disbursements for the purpose of communicating only with its mem-
bers, shareholders or subscribers to the exclusion of all other persons,
with respect to endorsements of candidates, positions on a referen-
dum or explanation of its views or interests, without reporting such
activity. No such corporation, cooperative, or association may solicit
contributions from persons who are not members, shareholders or
subscribers to be used for such purposes.. ..

Section 11.38 (1) (a) 1., Wisconsin Statutes, proi)ide's:

11.38 (1) (a) 1. No foreign or domestic corporation, or association
organized under ch. 185 or 193, may make any contribution or dis-
bursement, directly or indirectly, either independently or through any
political party, committee, group, candidate or individual for any
purpose other than to promote or defeat a referendum.

Conclusions. . ,

The Government Accountability Board concludes that there is no probable cause
to believe that Americans for Prosperity violated §11.38, Wisconsin Statutes, in
connection with mailing the letter that was the subject of this investigation.

The State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board on the unanimous,
affirmative vote of the six members meeting on October 6, 2008, adopts these
_preliminary findings of fact and conclusions.

STATE OF WISCONSIN GOVERNMENT
ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD

By Thomas Cane, Chair
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AMERICANS FOR PROSPERITY

WISCONSIN CHAPTER
March 25, 2008

Dear Member - Wisconsin Americans for Prosperity:

Next Tuesday’s election for Wisconsin Supreme Court is perhaps-the most critical our
state has had since I became state director of AFP-Wisconsin 3 years ago.

Your Vote is Critical April 1
Judicial Activis;x Hurts Prosperity.

In what is expected to be a very close election, activist Justice Louis Butler faces a strong
‘challenge from judicial traditionalist Judge Michael Gableman of Burnett County.

" In recent years, the Wisconsin Supreme Court has issued a series of activist rulings that
have overturned liability limits for Wisconsin businesses and even created new liability
for industry. .

Justice Butler is a member of the four-member activist majority. If he is defeated, a
traditionalist majority is likely to re-emerge on the Supreme Court. If Butler wins, an
activist majority will be even more firmly established. Judge Gableman has said he
opposes legislating from the bench and would defer to the Legislature on policymaking.

Polling has found this race to be very close. Your vote is critical.
Please read the editorial from The Wall Street Journal below before you vote on April 1.

The Wall Street Journal — Wisconsin Bar Brawl
March 24, 2008; Review and Outlook -- Page A14

When Wisconsin voters 80 to the, polls this April Fool's day, the state Supreme Court may realize the joke's
on them. After four years of judicial activism, one of the court's most liberal members, Justice Louis Butler,
is up for re-election -- and voters get to send 2 message about what they expect from their judges.

The last time Badger State voters had a chance to vote on Justice Butler, in 2000, the then-Milwaukee
County Municipal Judge lost by nearly 2-1 to then-state Supreme Court Justice Diane Sykes. But when a
seat opened up on the high court in 2004 with the elevation of Justice Sykes to the federal Seventh Circuit
Court of Appeals, Democratic Governor Jim Doyle appointed Judge Butler to the slot.

Liberals suddenly enjoyed a 5-4 majority on the court, and it swung sharply to the left. The court
systematically dismantled the state's tort reform laws, eliminating caps on noneconomic damages in
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medical malpractice rulings. In another case, the court made Wisconsin the only state to accept “collective
liability" for manufacturers in cases involving lead paint. Whether a company actually produced the paint
became irrelevant to guilt or innocence. :

Looking at the medical malpractice ruling, Judge Sykes noted in a speech that "the court's majority is
making a pelitical policy judgment, not a legal one." Also noticing were members of the state's business
community, which has proceeded to finance an election challenge to Justice Butler. Many have rallied
around the strong challenge by Burnett County Judge Michael Gableman, a former state prosecutor. Ina
campaign of dueling TV ads, opponents who often call Justice Butler, a former public defender, "Loophole
Louis™ have been criticizing his criminal jurisprudence.

But while the Butler campaign has howled about unfairness, the Wisconsin plaintiffs bar is pouring money
into the race on his behalf. In the current election cycle, more than $228,000 in contributions have come
from the state’s lawyers — more than half of the campaign’s total. In a TV spot, groups supporting the
liberal Justice are claiming that Judge Gableman's district is one of the pokiest in dealing with criminal
cases. They neglect to mention that this is because he's the only judge in the district, but you have to smile
at the spectacle of liberal groups trying to save a liberal judge by calling his opponent soft on crime.

. Referecing all this is a supposedly bipartisan "watchdog” group known as the Wisconsin Judicial Campaign
Integrity Committee, formed in December. Chaired by Tom Basting, president of the Wisconsin Bar
Association, the group claims to represent the interest of fair and impartial courts. They want both .
candidates to sign a "Code of Judicial Conduct” campaign pledge, which Mr. Gableman has so far declined
to do.

So who are these self-appointed guardians of faimess? Of the committee's eight members, seven are
Democrats -- either political leaders or donors to Govemor Doyle. Three arereported to have ties to Justice
Butler's campaign. And in emails collected by the Wisconsin Club for Growth in February, committee
members were quoted as calling Judge Gableman's campaign aides "mercenaries” and suggesting campaign
strategies that might benefit Justice Butler.’

Judicial elections aren't always enlightening, but they are a natural public reaction when courts usurp the
power of legislatures. They can also be a check on a legal elite wha think they should dominate the bench.
Justice Butler picked this election fight when he and four colleagues decided, by judicial fiat, to make
Wisconsin a national mecca for the trial bar.

Please malke sure you vote and urge yéur family, friends and business associates to
make the time on Tuesday April 1** to make it to the polls.

Sincerely,

My el
Mark Block )
State Director, Americans for Prosperity of Wisconsin

THIS COMMUNICATION IS BEING SENT TO YOU PURSUANT TO WIS. STATS.
§ 11.29(1). IF YOU NO LONGER WISH TO RECEIVE COMMUNICATIONS FROM
AFP-WISCONSIN, PLEASE NOTIFY US AT:

Mark J. Block, Executive Director, Americans for Prosperity, Wisconsin Chapter
1126 South 70th Street, Suite S 219A, Milwaukee, W1 53214 '
Phone: (414) 475-2975, Toll Free: 1-877-667-2975
Email: infowi@afphg.org
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2008-16 Representative Michael Huebsch

MOTION: Adopt the report, find no probable cause, and dismiss the matter.
Moved by Myse, second by Cane. Motion carried unanimously.
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State of Wisconsin Government Accduntability Board
In the Matter of

)

) PRELIMINARY FINDINGS OF
) FACT AND CONCLUSIONS
) .
)

Rep. Michael Huebsch GAB Case #2008-16

Background. The Government Accountability Board received a complaint on
May 2, 2008 from James D. Wine alleging that former Assembly Speaker
Michael Huebsch (1) in 2006 and 2007 caused his campaign account to
reimburse him for mileage that he did not incur for a political purpose and (2)
from May 1, 2005 to December 31, 2006 gave his vote or influence, or otherwise
took official action on 2005 Assembly Bills 195, 414, 764, 766, 787, 892, 960,
981, 1021, 1072, 1073, and 1217 in consideration of, or upon condition that, one
or more individuals furnish Mr. Huebsch with campaign contributions.

Preliminary Findings of Fact. The Board adopts the attached Report of
Investigation as its Preliminary Findings of Fact in this matter. The Board does
not possess or have knowledge of any information which would tend to refute or
discredit these findings.

Applicable statutes.
Section §11.25 (2) (a), Wisconsin Statutes, provides:

(2) (a) No person, committee or group may make or authorize a
disbursement or the incurrence of an obligation from moneys solicited
for political purposes for a purposes which is other than political,
except as spegcifically authorized by law.

Section §19.45 (13), Wisconsin Statutes, provides:

(13) No state public official or candidate for state public office may,
directly or by means of an agent, give, or offer or promise to give, or
withhold, or offer or promise to withhold, his or her vote or influence, or
promise to take refrain from taking official action with respect to any
proposed or pending matter in consideration of, or upon condition that,
any other person make or refrain from making a political contribution,
or provide or refrain from providing any service or other thing of value,
to or for the benefit of a candidate, a political party, any person who is
subject to a registration requirement under s. 11.05, or any person
making a communication that contains a reference to a clearly
identified state public official holding an elective office or to a
candidate for state public office.

Conclusions.

The Government Accountability Board concludes there is no probable cause to
believe that Michael Huebsch violated §11.25 (2), Wisconsin Statutes, nor has
he violated §19.45 (13), Wisconsin Statutes.
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The State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board on the unanimous,
affirmative vote of the six members meeting on March 31, 2009, adopts these
preliminary findings of fact and conclusions.

STATE OF WISCONSIN GOVERNMENT

ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD ﬁ&‘/vw

, By Michgdel Brennan, Chair
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State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board
In the Matter of

)

) REPORT OF

) INVESTIGATION
)
)

Rep. Michael Huebsch GAB Case #2008-16

Background. The Government Accountability Board received a complaint on
May 2, 2008 from James D. Wine alleging that former Assembly Speaker
Michael Huebsch (1) in 2006 and 2007 caused his campaign account to
reimburse him for mileage that he did not incur for a political purpose and (2)
from May 1, 2005 to December 31, 2006 gave his vote or influence, or otherwise
took official action on 2005 Assembly Bills 195, 414, 764, 766, 787, 892, 960,
981, 1021, 1072, 1073, and 1217 in consideration of, or upon condition that, one
or more individuals furnish Mr. Huebsch with campaign contributions.

Investigation Activities. The Board’s investigators, Doug Haag, John
Norsetter, and Dean Nickel examined documents, and interviewed
Representative Huebsch, lobbyists, and others as detailed in the investigators’
reports provided to the Board. The Board does not possess or have knowledge
of any information which would tend to refute or discredit these findings.

Findings.

This investigation was predicated on a two part allegation: First, that the mileage
reimbursements claimed by Rep. Mike Huebsch were unrealistic and that Rep.
Huebsch was possibly converting campaign funds to his personal use by
overstating the number of miles that he claimed. Secondly, that during the 2005-
20086 legislative sessions, as Assembly majority leader, Rep. Huebsch received
contributions to his campaign fund in a disproportionate amount from certain
industries during times that bills of interest to those industries were moving
through the legislature. The allegation was that campaign contributions to Rep.
Huebsch were tied to the movement of the bills. The investigation found no
evidence to substantiate either allegation.

Mileage claims.

Rep. Huebsch stated that, in his role as majority leader, he traveled constantly
throughout Wisconsin. He also averaged two to three trips per week between
Madison and his home district in the LaCrosse area. Rep. Huebsch stated that,
in 2005, he stopped claiming reimbursement for mileage expenses on his State
of Wisconsin Time and Travel Reports. Rep. Huebsch said that since he had
become majority leader earlier that year, his travel often combined state
business with “political” content. He stated that he wanted to avoid claiming
state reimbursement for travel that also involved political business. Rep.
Huebsch stated that, from that time forward, he used his campaign funds for all
travel reimbursement, except for the per diem that he claimed while in Madison.
A review of the documents held by the Assembly Chief Clerk verified that Rep.
Huebsch stopped claiming expenses other than per diem in August, 2005.
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Pay to play allegations.

The complaint alleged fundraising irregularities in four areas: alcohol (beer, wine
and liquor industries), health care (hospital and medical industries), insurance
and telephone. The allegations were based on spikes in campaign contributions
from specific industries occurring near the time that bilis were brought to a vote.
We interviewed lobbyists representing clients in each area.

The majority of the lobbyists interviewed stated that the fact that Rep. Huebsch
agreed with their clients on issues was the major factor in making contributions
to him. Several indicated the fact that Rep. Huebsch was Assembly majority
leader and in a position of influence were also factors influencing campaign
contributions.

No lobbyist that we interviewed stated that he or she believed that Rep.
Huebsch's vote or influence on a bill was based on or influenced by campaign
contributions. In fact, when asked directly about this, all stated that they did not
recall any instance in which they talked to Rep. Huebsch about contributions and
legislation in the same conversation. Several went further and stated that Rep.
Huebsch was an honest public servant and was not a legislator that they would
think of if there were anyone in the legislature involved in “pay to play”.

A number of lobbyists also pointed out that, during the 2005-2006 sessions, Rep.
Huebsch was the Assembly majority leader, but John Gard was the Speaker of
the Assembly. They considered Rep. Gard as being the driving force in
determining what legislation moved through the Assembly, rather than Rep.
Huebsch.

With respect to the relation between the timing of contributions and the
scheduling of bills, each lobbyist that we interviewed stated in one form or
another that contributions are not based on the status of bills in the legislature,
but rather on the timing of fundraisers, legislative days, industry days, or other
similar events.

These statements were corroborated by our examination of the timing of
contributions with specific events. We found, for example, that the Tavemn
League of Wisconsin held a legislative day on March 29, 2005 at which Rep.
Huebsch spoke. Rep. Huebsch had an annual fundraiser golf outing in
September, 2005. The Wisconsin Hospital Association held a fundraiser for
Rep. Huebsch in connection with its annual convention on September 22, 2005
which raised $7000-$8000 for Rep. Huebsch’s campaign. The fundraiser had
been scheduled the previous year. Rep. Huebsch held fundraisers in April and
June of 2005, one in Madison and the other in the Wisconsin Dells, both
attended by representatives from the various beer, wine and liquor associations.

A significant allegation of the complaint centered on the receipt of campaign
contributions from the beer, wine, and liquor industry in connection with AB787.
A substantial majority of contributions from that industry were given to Rep.
Huebsch in April 2005. This pre-dated a Supreme Court decision on May 16 of
that year affecting distribution issues in the liquor industry. Only after the Court
ruling did the need for the bill arise and was the bill subsequently introduced.
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In sum, Rep. Huebsch and the lobbyists with whom we spoke all denied a link
between contributions and bill scheduling. Empirical evidence from our
examination of the timing of fundraising events, bill histories, and contribution
patterns tends to substantiate those assertions.

Conclusion.

The investigation found no evidence to support a finding of probable cause to
believe that Michael Huebsch violated either §11.25 (2), Wisconsin Statutes, or
has he violated §19.45 (13), Wisconsin Statutes.
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State of Wisconsin\Government Accountablhty Board

212 East Washington Avenue, 3'* Floor
Post Office Box 7984

Madison, WE 53707-7584

Voice (608) 266-3005

Fax  (608) 267-0500

E-mail: gab@wisconsin.gov
httpligab.wi.gov

JUDGE MICHAEL BRENNAN
Chair

KEVIN J. KENNEDY
Director and General Counsel

July 16, 2009

The Honorable Lena Taylor
State Senator

Room 415 South

State Capitol

Madison WI 53707-7882

Dear Senator Taylor:

I am writing to formally notify you that the Government Accountability Board has completed its
investigation regarding a traffic citation issued to you by the Milwaukee Police Department on
January 23, 2009, which was subsequently voided and then re-issued by Department officials.
The goal of our agency’s investigation was to determine whether you violated Wis. Stats. Section
19.45, the Code of Ethics for State Public Officials. Section 19.45(2) prohibits a public official
from using his or her public position or office to obtain financial gain or anything of substantial
.value for his or her private benefit. Section 19.45(3) prohibits a public official from soliciting or
accepting, directly or indirectly, anything of value if it could reasonably be expected to influence
the official’s vote, official actions or judgment, or could réasonably be considered a reward for
any official action on the part of the public official. '

G.A.B. staff conducted interviews with you and with every member of the Milwaukee Police
Department involved in the incident. The Government Accountability Board considered this
matter and made a finding that no probable cause existed to conclude that you had violated the
Ethics Code. The Board’s decision was based on its evaluation of the evidence and credibility of
the statements gathered in the staff investigation.

In"summary, the evidence showed that you did not request that the traffic citation be voided or
that you be given special consideration. The evidence established that the decision was initiated
by members of the Police Department. In addition, we found no evidence that your contact with
the traffic officers who gave you the ticket involved the use of your public office or position.

This notification concludes our agency review of this matter. As a record of the Board’s finding
of no probable cause, this correspondence may be considered a public record pursuant to Wis.
Stats. Section 5.05(5s)(e)4. We appreciate your cooperation with our investigation, and if you
have any questions about this matter, please feel free to contact us.

Sincerely,

GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD

Medy

Director and General Counsel
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GAB 2010-01 Dan Bohrod and GAB 2010-02 Terri McCormick

Michael Haas updated the Board on investigations into complaints that the above two
candidates have solicited public employees. Staff recommends dismissing both
complaints regarding s. 11.36, and the s. 11.30 complaint against Bohrod due to lack of
reasonable suspicion that any violations have occurred.

MOTION: To dismiss complaints due to a lack of reasonable suspicion that any
violations have occurred. Moved by Judge Cane, seconded by Judge Nichol. Motion

carried unanimously.
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State of Wisconsin \ Government Accountability Board

Post Office Box 7984

212 East Washington Avenue, 3™ Floor
Madison, WI 53707-7984

Voice (608) 266-8005

Fax  (608) 267-0500

E-mail: gab@wisconsin.gov
http://gab.wi.gov

JUDGE WILLIAM EICH
Chairperson

KEVIN J. KENNEDY
Director and General Counsel

MEMORANDUM
DATE: For the Meeting of March 23-24, 2010
TO: Members, Wisconsin Government Accountability Board

FROM: Kevin J. Kennedy
Director and General Counsel
Government Accountability Board

Prepared and Presented by:
Jonathan Becker, Ethics and Accountability Division Administrator
Michael Haas, Staff Counsel

SUBJECT: Inthe Matter of Dan Bohrod
2010-GAB-01
In the Matter of Terri McCormic
2010-GAB-02 :

Background Summary

The Board has recently received complaints alleging that two different candidates — state
treasurer candidate Dan Bohrod and congressional candidate Terri McCormick -- have

solicited public employees in violation of §11.36, Wis. Stats. Given their similarities as well as
the Board’s previous discussion regarding the interpretation of “political solicitation,” it may
be helpful for the Board to consider the two matters together.

Issues

Do communications issued by political committees and delivered to email addresses of public
officials and employees violate §11.36, Stats., when those communications include political
messages but do not request a contribution or involvement in campaign activity?

Does a press release issued by a campaign committee require an attribution statement pursuant
to §11.30, Stats. when the press release clearly indicates that it was created and released by the
committee and no disbursement for the production and distribution of the press release can be
identified?

Recommended Motion

Dismiss the two complaints regarding §11.36 allegations, and the §11.30 complaint against
candidate Bohrod due to lack of reasonable suspicion that any violations have occurred.
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Bohrod and McCormick Complaints
March 23-24, 2010
Page 2

Factual Background

In the first matter, the Board received a complaint from Attorey Michael Maistelman on
behalf of the campaign of State Treasurer Dawn Marie Sass. The complaint alleges that
candidate Dan Bohrod’s campaign emailed a press release to a large list which included email
address for public officials or employees, including addresses using the domain addresses of
co.dane.wi.us, wisc.edu, and legis.wisconsin.gov. The press release was critical of incumbent
Treasurer Sass, was issued on campaign stationery and mentions the Bohrod candidacy, but
does not specifically invite or request either political contributions or volunteer activity. The
complaint also alleges that candidate Bohrod violated §11.30 by failing to include an
attribution statement on the press release to identify the source of the press release. A copy of
the complaint and the press release are attached.

In the second matter, congressional candidate Terri McCormick’s campaign emailed a
communifation to the office email address of the Outagamie County Clerk, and presumably to
other local officials. The message was addressed to “local government leader” and invited
recipients to sign up to receive regular newsletters from the McCormick campaign by clicking
on a link in the email. The email promotes the McCormick campaign and uses its logo, but,
like the Bohrod press release, does not specifically invite or request either political
contributions or volunteer activity. A copy of the McCormick email is attached as well as the’
page that appears when a recipient activates the link to register for the newsletter.

Analysis
A. §11.36 Solicitation Issues

The Bohrod press release was apparently emailed to several state elected officials and
employees as well as to at least one local government employee. The McCormick email was
apparently emailed to a list of local government employees or officers. The relevant provisions
of §11.36, Stats. state as follows:

(1) No person may solicit or receive from any state officer or employee...any
contribution or service for any political purpose while the officer or employee is
engaged in his or her official duties....

(2) No person may solicit or receive from any officer or employee of a political
subdivision of this state any contribution or service for any political purpose
during established hours of employment or while the officer or employee is
engaged in his or her official duties.

(4) No person may enter or remain in any building, office or room occupied for any
purpose by the state, by any political subdivision thereof...or send or direct a
letter or other notice thereto for the purpose of requesting or collecting a
contribution.
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Rohrod and McCormick Complaints
March 23-24, 2010

Page 3

(5) In this section, “political purpose” includes an act done for the purpose of
influencing the election or nomination for election of a person to national office,
and “contribution” includes an act done for that purpose.

Section 11.01(6), Stats., contains the general definition of “contribution,” which focuses
on a transfer of money or anything of value. In addition, §11.01(16), Stats., states that
“An act is done for a “political purpose” when it is done for the purpose of influencing
the election or nomination for election of any individual to state or local office....”

At its meeting of October 5, 2009, the Board discussed political communications that are sent
to governmental email addresses, and the type of communication that constitutes a solicitation
of a contribution or service under §11.36, Stats. The consensus of the Board was that a
political communication does not necessarily solicit a contribution or service for a political
purpose solely because the communication is made by a registered committee. Consistent with
that finding, it is the opinion of Board staff that neither the Bohrod campaign press release nor
the McCormick email solicited a political contribution or service from public officers or
employees.

At most, in both instances the committees were seeking the attention of potential recipients
and asking them to read the communication. The McCormick email also invites readers to
click a link which opens up a page to sign up for future newsletters from the campaign. Those
actions of a recipient of an email do not seem to constitute an act done for the purpose of
influencing the election or nomination of an individual to an elected office. Therefore the
invitations of the Bohrod and McCormick campaigns to read their respective communications
would not seem to constitute a solicitation for a political contribution or service.

B. §11.30 Attribution Issues

The complaint filed by the Sass campaign also alleges that the Bohrod campaign failed to
include the attribution required by §11.30, Stats. on its press release. Section 11.30(2)(b) states
that every communication of a political committee which is paid for or reimbursed by a
committee shall be identified by the words “Paid for by”, followed by the name of the
committee making the payment for the communication and the name of the committee
treasurer.

The Bohrod press release clearly identifies the campaign committee as its source but does not
include the words “Paid for by” or the treasurer’s name. In speaking with Mr. Bohrod,
however, staff has determined that there is no specific expense that can be attributed to the
creation or distribution of the press release. Mr. Bohrod wrote the press release himself on his
personal computer and sent it to the email addresses he had accumulated. The press release
was not generated by a paid staff member of the campaign or using a computer purchased by
the campaign, in which case it might have been easier to identify some specific disbursement
that could be attributed to the press release. The staff’s opinion, therefore, is that the Bohrod
press release also did not violate §11.30, Stats.
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Staff Recommendation

Pursuant to §5.05(2m)(c)4., Board staff recommends that the Board dismiss the complaints
against candidates Dan Bohrod and Terri McCormick due to a lack of reasonable suspicion that
any violations of §11.36, Stats., has occurred. Staff further recommends dismissing the
complaint against candidate Bohrod alleging a violation of §11.30 for the same reason.
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MOTION: The Board finds no probable cause to believe Senator Kapanke violated the
law because he has demonstrated by clear and convincing evidence that the business
opportunities were available to the general public. Staff to send letter for Senator
Kapanke to the Board chair, outlining the criteria for findings in this case. Moved by
Judge Nichol, seconded by Judge Myse.

Discussion.
MOTION: To amend the motion to say the Board has investigated the complaint
against Senator Kapanke, concluded that no violation occurred, and dismisses the

complaint under 5.05(2)(m). Moved by Judge Nichol, seconded by Judge Myse.
Motion carried unanimously.
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Eric M. McLeod

Michael Best & Friedrich LLP

One South Pinckney Street, Suite 700
P.O. Box 1806

Madison, WI 53701-1806

Re: In the Matter of Senator Dan Kapanke,
GAB Case #2010-17

Dear Mr. McLeod:

As we previously informed you, the Government Accountability Board considered allegations
from Mike Tate that the LaCrosse Loggers Foundation Inc. impropexly used funds received from
LaCrosse Baseball LLC to pay the City of Lacrosse for an obligation assumed by Senator
Kapanke in April 2008 to make improvements at the city-owned stadium rented by the baseball
team. The gist of the complaint was that the funds the Foundation used were funds transferred
from the baseball team that the team had received from lobbying principals. Wisconsin’s lob-
bying law prohibits a principal to furnish anything of pecuniary value to a state elected official.
Pursuant to an agreement with the former Ethics Board, Senator Kapanke was to transfer all
advertising revenue received from lobbying principals to the Foundation to be used for charitable

purposes.

M. Tate’s complaint alleged that on March 5, 2009, the City of La Crosse entered into a Third
Addendum to the Lease Agreement with La Crosse Baseball, LLC, to cover the costs of
installing lighting at the baseball team’s home ballpark at Copland Field. As part of this Third
Addendum to the Lease Agreement, La Crosse Baseball, LLC, was required to make semi~
annual payments to the City of La Crosse on June 15, 2009 and December 15, 2009, and con-
tinuing semi-annually for a period of 10 years. The semi-annual lease payments are in the
amount of $16,930.80. Additionally, a $225,000.00 Promissory Note was executed personally
and individually by Senator Kapanke and his wife to cover the costs of the lighting and
guarantee the lease payments.

Mr. Tate’s complaint also alleged that the Form 990 filed with the IRS by the La Crosse Log-
gers Foundation, Inc., documents a $16,930.80 payment to the City of La Crosse on June 12,
9009. Mr. Tate alleges that the Foundation’s lease payment converted its lobbying principal
funds to the benefit of Senator Kapanke because the lease payment is a contractual obligation
and debt of the La Crosse Baseball, LLC, which is also personally guaranteed by Senator
Kapanke, (Previous Ethics Board records document that Senator Kapanke held a 100%
interest in the La Cross Loggers, LLC.)
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At its meeting of December 13, 2010, the Board concluded that no further action was warranted
with respect to Mr. Tate’s allegations. This was because Senator Kapanke was under no obliga-
tion to, and received no consideration for, undertaking the improvements. Indeed, the Founda-
tion could have directly agreed with the City to pay for the improvements. In the Board’s view,
the obligation undertaken by Senator Kapanke to make stadium improvements was a voluntary
undertaking for which neither he nor LaCrosse Baseball received any consideration and could
have been undertaken directly by the Foundation as a charitable endeavor. For this reason the
Board concluded that no further action was warranted.

However, in the course of its investigation, the Board reviewed LaCrosse Baseball’s financial
disclosures which raised concemns that although the baseball team donated thousands of dollars
of revenue received from lobbying principals to the Foundation, LaCrosse Baseball may not have
deposited all such revenues with the Foundation for the years 2007, 2008, and 2009.

At the request of Senator Kapanke, the Board examined the question of whether his LLC’s
receipt of such revenues from lobbying principals was nevertheless permitted because the
payments were available to the general public. Section 13.625 (2), provides:

13.625 (2) No principal may engage in the practices prohibited under sub, (1) (b)
and (c). This subsection does not apply to the furnishing of transportation, lodging,
food, meals, beverages or any other thing of pecuniary value which is also made
available to the general public.

By its terms, this applies to items of pecuniary value that a principal makes available to the
general public. In 80 Op. Att’y Gen. 205, Attorney General Doyle stated:

1 agree that the criteria you suggest are appropriate for determining whether an item
or service is available to the general public under section 13.625(2). Under those
criteria, something is available to the general public if:

1. Itis available to anyone who wants it and who meets the criteria for eligibility;
2. The criteria are: (a) established and readily identifiable; and (b) drawn without
the purpose or effect of giving a preference to or conferring an advantage upon an
agency official, legislative employe or elective state official; and

3. There is no offer or notice of availability directed to an agency official, legisla-
tive employe or elective state official with the effect of conferring an advantage not
also given others who meet the criteria.

Under these criteria, a legislator who is an alumnus of a university which is also a
principal could purchase school memorabilia from the school but the school could
not hire the official as a "consultant.”

In the same opinion, at p. 208, the Attorney General, in explaining the exception, stated:

Therefore, an official may purchase banking services and may receive loans from a
bank which hires a lobbyist if the services and loans are provided to the official on
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the same terms and conditions that the services and loans are provided to the gen-
eral public. Similarly, an official could purchase legal services from or sell legal
services to an association, corporation or partnership that employs a lobbyist if such
services are provided on the same terms or conditions to the general public.

In March 1994, the Ethics Board asked for clarification of the Attorney General’s statement.
In a letter of November 28, 1994, the Attorney General stated that a lobbying principal could
not only sell goods and services to a state official if they are also made available to the general
public; a lobbying principal could also purchase legal services from an official, but one must
look at the facts to determine if the exception applies.

The Attorney General stated:

I would agree with you that a principal which used a bidding process to select an
attorney who was also a public official would have gone a long way towards estab-
lishing that the employment had been made available to the general public. Like-
wise, if the lobbying principal approached comparable firms or lawyers, that is, law
firms with comparable expertise and resources, and after due consideration chose
the officials’ law firm, a finder of fact could certainly conclude that the employment
bad been made available to the general public.

The Attorney General went on to say that “[t]he law must be interpreted and enforced in such a
way so as to permit legitimate business relationships between principals and the attorneys they
wish to employ.” The Attorney General further said that factors such as a pre-existing profes-
sional relationship between a principal and an official, a payment amount that is not unusual,
and a relationship that mirrors similar relationships could be pertinent in determining whether
something is available to the general public.

Applying these criteria, the Board concluded that LaCrosse Baseball’s transactions with lobbying
principals were available to the general public and that there is no probable cause to believe that
Senator Kapanke has violated the lobbying law.

Sincerely,

.

Kevin J. Kénnedy »

Director and General Counsel
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: May 18, 2011
TO: Members of the Public
FROM: Govemment Accountability Board

SUBJECT: Complaints Asising from Budget Repair Bill Dispute
Case No. 2011-GAB-01

" SUMMARY

The Government Accountability Board has received numerous complaints related to recent
events and the actions of various state public officials involved in the debate regarding Governor
Scott Walker’s budget repair bill. Over the course of several weeks in February and March,
Board staff was inundated with telephone calls and email messages complaining about tactics
used by officials on either side of the debate, and requesting that the Board take action to enforce
procedural rules and penalize elected officials for perceived unethical conduct. The Board has
examined each of these complaints.

While the complaints characterized various actions of public officials as morally or politically
“unethical,” the Board’s role is to enforce the specific provisions of the Ethics Code for State
Public Officials, as well as the campaign finance, elections, and lobbying laws. It is not to pass
judgment on political actions or political positions.

Pursuant to §5.05(2m)(c)4., Wis. Stats., if the board reviews a complaint and fails to find that
there is a reasonable suspicion that a violation of the laws under the Board’s jurisdiction has
occurred or is occurring, the board shall dismiss the complaint. In determining whether an
investigation of the many complaints received by the Board related to the budget repair bill con-
troversy was warranted, the Board accepted the allegations contained in the complaints as true.
For the reasons stated, the Board has dismissed each of the complaints described below due to
lack of reasonable suspicion that a violation of any law administered by the Government
Accountability Board has occurred.

COMPLAINTS AND DISPOSITIONS
1. A series of allegations was made in a complaint filed by the Democratic Party of Wisconsin
(DPW) against Governor Scott Walker on March 7, 2011. Many individual citizens and

organizations filed complaints with similar allegations. These complainants are summarized
as follows:
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A. Allegation: Governor Walker participated in a telephone call with an individual
who falsely represented himself to be David Koch. Mr. Koch is a contributor to
conservative causes. An organization headed by Mr. Koch contributed $43,000
directly to the Walker gubernatorial campaign and $1 million to the Republican
Governors Association, which spent $3.4 million on television ads in support of
the Walker campaign. During the telephone call, the Koch impersonator asked
how he could help the effort to support the Governor’s proposed budget repair
bill. Governor Walker responded that some Republican legislators would benefit
from advertisements being run in their districts in support of the bill. The state-
ment allegedly constitutes a request to initiate political disbursements in coordi-
nation with the Governor’s campaign, in violation of the oath of independent
disbursements and §11.06(7){(c), Wis. Stats.

Board’s Finding: Section 11.06(7)(c), Stats., prohibits a committee which files an
oath of independent disbursements from acting in cooperation or consultation or
in concert with any candidate or agent or authorized committee of a candidate
who is supported by the committee or benefits from a disbursement of the com-
mittee. In this instance, Governor Walker was not speaking with a representative
of a committee or organization making independent disbursements, but with an
individual who falsely represented himself as someone speaking on behalf of such
an organization. Taking all facts alleged as true, the Board found that the com-
plaint failed to establish reasonable suspicion that a violation of §11.06(7)(c),
Stats., occurred, and the Board dismissed this allegation.

B. Allegation: Governor Walker participated in the telephone call with the individ-
ual falsely representing himself to be David Koch while he was in the Governor’s
Office in the Capitol building. The telephone call, therefore, constituted a viola-
tion of §11.36(4), Stats., which prohibits any person from remaining in any state
building for the purpose of requesting a political contribution.

Finding: The Governor’s statement, at most, is a suggestion that his agenda and
supportive legislators would benefit from issue advertising. The Governor did not
request monetary or in-kind political contributions. Taking all facts alleged as
true, the Board found that the complaint failed to establish reasonable suspicion
that a violation of §11.36(4), Stats., occurred, and the Board dismissed this
allegation. '

C. Allegation: During the telephone call with the individual falsely representing
himself to be David Koch, Governor Walker stated that he has the Attorney Gen-
eral’s office “looking into” strategies to force the return to the State of Democ-
ratic Senators, who had left the State in order to deny the required quorum for
Senate action on the budget repair bill. The statement allegedly constituted a
misuse of the independently elected office of Attorney General for primarily
political motivations.

Finding: Taking all facts alleged as true, the Board found that the Governor’s

statement regarding the Attorney General’s role and involvement in the political
debate did not establish reasonable suspicion that a violation of a specific provi-
sion of the Ethics Code for State Public Officials occurred. The statement estab-
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lishes nothing more than the Governor speculating about possible support for his
agenda from another constitutional officer and seeking legal advice from the
State’s lawyer about possible legal options and strategies to advance the Gover-
nor’s proposed agenda. Accomplishing a goal of his legislative agenda does not
confer a personal financial benefit on Governor Walker, and the Ethics Code does
not prohibit officials from engaging in activity that might be perceived as politi-
cal, provided that the office is not used in a specific way to support a campaign
effort, such as by organizing a fundraising event or issuing campaign communi-
cations. Therefore, the Board dismissed this allegation.

D. Allegation: During the telephone call described above, Governor Walker stated
that he consulted with staff members and Cabinet officials to consider “planting”
troublemakers to incite violence in peaceful protests at the Capitol, and that he
decided not to do so only because such a tactic might scare the public into think-
ing that he should settle the dispute to avoid problems. The Governor’s statement
allegedly constitutes a conspiracy to recklessly endanger public safety in violation
of §§939.31 and 947.01, Stats.

Finding: Taking all facts alleged as true, the Board found that the Governor’s
statement did not constitute a violation of a specific provision of the Ethics Code
for State Public Officials or any other law under the Board’s jurisdiction, and
dismissed this allegation. No evidence suggests that the Governor actually
encouraged or organized others to incite violence at any protests, and any alleged
violations of the criminal statutes cited are within the purview of local law
enforcement and prosecutors, not the Board. Notably, the Dane County District
Attorney announced that his office had investigated this allegation and found no
grounds for prosecution under the criminal statutes.

E. Allegation: During the telephone call described above, Governor Walker stated
that he was preparing to issue layoff notices to 5,000 — 6,000 public sector
employees in an attempt to “ratchet up” the political pressure on Democratic
Senators to return to the State and allow a vote on the budget repair bill. This
statement allegedly constituted a threat against, and intimidation of public sector
employees for political purposes, and is an unfair labor practice in violation of
§111.84, Stat.

Finding: Taking all facts alleged as true, the Board found that the Govemnor’s
statement did not establish reasonable suspicion that a violation of a specific pro-
vision of the Ethics Code for State Public Officials or any other law under the
Board’s jurisdiction has occurred. Alleged violations of the employment relations
provisions of Chapter 111 are matters to be resolved pursuant to that Chapter, and
not by the Board. Authorizing layoff notices would not result in a personal and
financial benefit to Governor Walker that is prohibited by the Ethics Code.

F. Allegation: During the telephone call described above, the individual falsely
representing himself to be David Koch offered to pay for the Governor to fly to
California, where he would be “shown a good time.” Governor Walker
responded by stating that it would “be great.” This offer and the Governor’s
response allegedly constituted a violation of §19.45(2), which prohibits a state
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official from using his public position or office to obtain financial gain or any-
thing of substantial value for the private benefit of the official or the official’s
immediate family.

Finding; Govemor Walker’s response was not an acceptance of something of
value because there was no offer actually made by Mr. Koch, only an imaginary
offer made by the individual representing himself as David Koch. Furthermore,
no such actual trip has been offered to, or taken by, the Governor. Taking all
facts alleged as true, therefore, the Board found that the complaint did not estab-
lish reasonable suspicion that a violation of §19.45(2), Stats., occurred, and
dismissed this allegation.

2. Inaddition to the allegations included in the complaint filed by the Democratic Party of
Wisconsin, the Board received the following complaints against Governor Walker, his
administration, and Republican legislators related to events surrounding the budget repair bill
dispute:

A. Allegation: Citizens for Responsibility and Ethics in Washington (CREW), and
several others, alleged that Governor Walker and Senate Majority Leader Scott
Fitzgerald misused state resources by ordering the Wisconsin State Patrol to visit
the homes of Democratic Senators, and by issuing orders that the State Patrol
detain Democratic Senators if they were located in Wisconsin and transport them
to the Capitol to participate in Senate business. The complaints noted that the
Superintendent of the State Patrol is Stephen Fitzgerald, the father of Senator
Fitzgerald, and that State troopers cannot take part in any dispute between an
employer and employee over wages or working conditions.

Finding: The CREW complaint essentially asserted that the involvement of the
State Patrol in attempting to locate and detain Senate Democrats is a violation of
§19.45(5), Stats., which prohibits state public officials from using or attempting to
use their public position to influence or gain unlawful benefits, advantages or
privileges for themselves or for others. The Department of Transportation issued
a response to the CREW complaint which is attached as Exhibit A. The response
of the State Patrol notes that it possesses broad latitude in its authorized duties,
including protecting the safety of State officials and assisting local law
enforcement.

Taking all alleged facts as true, the Board found that the complaints regarding the
use of the State Patrol did not establish a reasonable suspicion that a violation of
§19.45(5), Stats., occurred, or that the directives given to the State Patrol consti-
tuted an unlawful benefit. The State Patrol was not asked to intervene in a labor
dispute, but rather in a search for legislators who were intentionally absent from
the Senate’s floor session. The Senate possesses broad authority to compel atten-
dance of absent Senators pursuant to Article IV, §7 of the Wisconsin Constitution,
which authorizes each house of the Legislature “to compel the attendance of
absent members in such manner and under such penalties as it may provide.”
Given the broad language of this provision, and the broad latitude of the State
Patrol’s duties, the Board found that its actions did not confer an unlawful benefit
upon Governor Walker and-Senate Majority Leader Scott Fitzgerald.
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B. Allegation: The Board received several complaints regarding the adoption and
implementation of Senate rules by Majority Leader Scott Fitzgerald and Republi-
can Senators in the absence of Democratic Senators, including threatening to
withhold paychecks of Democratic Senators, terminating public testimony at a
committee hearing and debate on the Assembly floor, changing voting rules, con-
vening a floor session prior to the announced time, and failing to provide ade-
quate notice of a conference committee meeting under the Open Meetings Law.

Finding: The Board found that allegations regarding the rules of the Senate were
not within the jurisdiction of the Board. Article IV, §8 of the Wisconsin Consti-
tution provides that each house of the Legislature may determine the rules of its
own proceedings, and punish its members for contempt and disorderly behavior.
The Board has no authority to second-guess or oversee the reasonableness of the
Senate’s rules or their implementation, unless those rules violate statutory provi-
sions of the Ethics Code, campaign finance regulations, or lobbying laws. Legis-
lative actions taken by the majority of the Senate do not constitute use of a public
office for a personal and financial benefit. In addition, whether or not those
actions were influenced by political motivations does not convert them to cam-
paign activities. Therefore, taking all alleged facts as true, the Board found that
these allegations fail to establish reasonable suspicion that a violation of the
Ethics Code has occurred, and dismissed the complaints.

C. Allegation: The Board received a number of complaints alleging that Governor
Walker and the Secretary of the Department of Administration had unlawfully
restricted public access to the Capitol building, as a method of terminating
protests and demonstrations regarding the Governor’s budget repair bill.

Finding: The Board found that this allegation did not fall under the Board’s juris-
diction to enforce the specific provisions of the Ethics Code for State Public Offi-
cials. As demonstrated by the civil case brought in Dane County Circuit Court,
whether or not public access to the Capitol was properly restricted is a constitu-
tional question, and not an issue of enforcing the Ethics Code. Access to the
Capitol building was restricted pursuant to official policies of the Department of
Administration, which provided no personal financial gain to any of the state
public officials involved. Taking all alleged facts as true, therefore, the Board
found that these allegations failed to establish reasonable suspicion that a viola-
tion of the Ethics Code has occurred, and the dismissed these complaints.

D. Allegation: The Board received various complaints that elected officials have
used the budget repair bill debate to advance political motives. For instance,
some complaints argued that the fourteen Democratic Senators violated their
oaths of office by hiding out in Illinois as a political maneuver. Others have
complained about Senator Fitzgerald’s public comments that the elimination of
most collective bargaining rights for public employees will make it more difficult
for President Obama’s 2012 re-election campaign in Wisconsin.

Finding: This category of complaints was aimed at political tactics of elected
officials. The Board noted that the oath of office does not prohibit a legislator
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from being absent during the floor session. An alleged violation of the oath of
office is also not a basis for enforcement under the Ethics Code, without some
violation of a specific provision of the Ethics Code. The Ethics Code also does
not prohibit elected officials from speaking about potential political consequences
of legislative action, or even from using the public office for political advantage.
Taking all alleged facts as true, therefore, the Board found that these complaints
did not establish a reasonable suspicion that such political tactics and statements
violated the Ethics Code.

3. The Board received several complaints regarding the fourteen Senate Democrats who left the
State: )
Allegation: The Senate Democrats unlawfully used funds from their respective
campaign accounts, or gifts from supporters, to pay for lodging and meal
expenses during their stay in Illinois.

Finding: In response to verbal inquiries, Board staff had issued an informal
opinion to the Senate concluding that, while the Ethics Code prohibited Democ-
ratic Senators from accepting gifts to pay for their food and lodging, campaign
funds could be used for such purposes. The staff’s guidance was based on recog-
nition that the decision of Senate Democrats to leave the State involved at least
some political purpose which supported the use of political contributions. In
addition, staff noted that the Elections Board and Government Accountability
Board have consistently interpreted the term “political purpose” broadly, to
include activities which may have both an official state purpose as well as a pur-
pose to affect the outcome of future elections. The Board formally affirmed the
staff’s informal opinion regarding the Senate Democrats use of campaign funds
for lodging and living expenses during their stay in Illinois. Therefore, taking all
alleged facts as true, the Board found that these allegations failed to establish rea-
sonable suspicion that a violation of the Ethics Code or campaign finance laws
has occurred, and dismissed the complaints.

CONCLUSION

The Govemment Accountability reviewed the complaints and made the findings described above
at its meeting on March 23, 2011. The Board also directed staff to make a written public
announcement of the Board’s findings regarding these matters. In summary, the complaints
involved allegations which are outside the jurisdiction of the Board, did not include evidence of a
violation of the laws the Board administers, and/or involved the use of political tactics and
strategies which are resolved at the ballot box rather than by use of the enforcement tools avail-
able to the Board. Due to the high volume of similar complaints, and the public interest in the
resolution of the complaints, the Board is issuing this public statement regarding its findings in
these matters, not only to conclude the complaint process, but also as a method of educating the
public regarding the Board’s jurisdiction and enforcement responsibilities.
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Jonathan Becker prepared a written report. Mr. Becker gave an oral report about a
complaint from Scot Ross of One Wisconsin Now against Senator Olsen alleging he
violated Section 19.42(2) by co-sponsoring and voting for a bill that his wife would
personally profit from. Staff recommends dismissal because even if all alleged facts are
true, there is no violation of the law because CESA is a body politic and is therefore not
an organization with which the spouse is associated.

MOTION: Dismiss the complaint against Luther Olsen. Moved by Judge Cane,
seconded by Judge Deininger. Motion carried unanimously.
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August 4, 2011

The Honorable Luther Olsen
State Capitol, Room 123 South
Madison, W1 INTER-D

Scot Ross

One Wisconsin Now

152 West Johnson Street, Ste. 214
Madison, WI 53703

Dear Senator Olsen and Mr. Ross:

At its meeting of August 2, 2011, the Government Accountability Board dismissed Mr. Ross’
complaint alleging that Senator Olsen violated §19.45 (2), Wisconsin Statutes, by participating in
legislative matters affecting a Cooperative Educational Service Agency (CESA) of which Senator
Olsen’s wife is the administrator. The Board determined that there is no reasonable suspicion that
Senator Olsen violated the law.

The complaint alleged that Senator Olsen violated §19.45 (2) by co-sponsoring and voting for a bill
that would allow CESAs to establish charter schools and to be paid $7,775 per student that enrolled
in the school. Senator Olsen’s wife is the Administrator for CESA 6. At a committee hearing,
Senator Olsen also spoke and voted against a proposed bill amendment that would have affected
CESA 6’s ability to proceed with plans for establishing a charter school outside its geographic
district.

Section 19.45 (2) provides:

(2) No state public official may use his or her public position or office to obtain
financial gain or anything of substantial value for the private benefit of himself or her-
self or his or her immediate family, or for an organization with which he or she is
associated. This subsection does not prohibit a state public official from using the title
or prestige of his or her office to obtain contributions permitted and reported as required
bych. 11.

There is no allegation that Senator Olsen’s wife would personally profit from CESA 6
establishment of a charter school. The allegation is that Senator Olsen’s actions would lead to
financial gain for “an organization with which he is associated.” However, an “organization,”
within the meaning of the Ethics Code, does not include a “body politic.” Section 19.42 (11)
provides:

(11) “Organization” means any corporation, partnership, proprietorship, firm, enterprise,
franchise, association, trust or other legal entity other than an individual or body politic.

(Empbhasis added).
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Senator Luther Olsen
Scot Ross

August 4, 2011

Page 2

CESAs are bodies politic. They are created by chapter 116, Wisconsin Statutes, and are
governmental subdivisions. Miller v. Mauston School District, 222 Wis.2d 540 (Ct. App. 1998)
(CESAs are local governmental subdivisions). Thus, an official action that benefits a CESA (or a
school district or other local government unit with which an official is associated), even one headed
by the official’s spouse, does not violate the Ethics Code.

Please note that §5.05 (5s) (¢) 3., Wisconsin Statutes, provides that “any record containing a
finding that a complaint does not raise a reasonable suspicion that a violation of the law has
occurred” is a record of the Board that is open to public inspection and copying under §19.35 (1),
Wisconsin Statutes.

Sincerely,

GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD

Kevin J. Kennedy .

Director and General Counsel

GAB 2011-09
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2011-30 Governor Scott Walker
Jonathan Becker presented an oral and written report about a complaint alleging that a
website touting the Governor’s accomplishments is a misuse of state resources. He said the

website is well within the power of incumbency, and recommended dismissal.

MOTION: Dismiss the complaint. Moved by Judge Cane, seconded by Judge Vocke.
Motion carried unanimously.
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State of Wisconsin\Government Accountability Board

212 East Washington Avenue, 3™ Floor
Post Office Box 7984

Madison, WI 53707-7984

Voice (608) 266-8005

Fax  (608) 267-0500

E-mail: gab@wisconsin.gov
hitp://pab.wigov

JUDGE THOMAS H. BARLAND
Chair

KEVIN J. KENNEDY
Dircctor and General Counsel

November 15, 2011

Margaret Brick

Democratic Party of Wisconsin
110 King Street, Suite 203
Madison, WI 53703

Dear Ms. Brick:

This is to inform you that the Government Accountability Board has dismissed your complaint
against Governor Scott Walker filed on October 25, 2011. The complaint alleged that
Governor Walker violated §19.45 (2), Wisconsin Statutes, by using state resources to create
and host a website entitled “Reforms and Results.” The Board found no reasonable suspicion
to believe that Governor Walker violated the Ethics Code through that activity.

Sincerely,

Az, B

Jgnathan Becker, Administrator
ivision of Ethics and Accountability

cc: Governor Scott Walker

2011-GAB-30
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Vos Matter

Jonathan Becker gave an oral report regarding an ethics complaint filed against State
Representative Robin Vos regarding legislation to cap damage awards in certain lawsuits.
Representative Vos is a landlord, and the complaint alleges he voted on a matter that would
benefit him financially. Mr. Becker said the legislation is broad public policy, and would not
be retroactive.

MOTION: To dismiss the complaint. Moved by Judge Vocke, seconded by Judge Cane.
Motion carried unanimously.
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State of Wisconsin\Government Accountability Board

212 East Washington Avenue, 3™ Floor
Post Office Box 7984

Madison, \VI 53707-7984

Vaice (608) 266-8005

Fax  (608) 267-0500

E-mail; gab@wisconsin.gov
http://gab.wi.gov

JUDGE THOMAS H. BARLAND
Chair

KEVIN J. KENNEDY
Director and General Counsel

November 17, 2011

Vincent P. Megna
2600 N Mayfair Road, Ste 1030
Milwaukee, WI 53226 '

Dear Mr. Megna:

This is to inform you that the Government Accountability Board has dismissed your complaint
against Representative Robin Vos filed on November 3, 2011. The complaint alleged that
Representative Vos violated the Ethics Code for State Public officials, Ch. 19, subch. III,
Wisconsin Statutes, by sponsoring and promoting Special Session Senate Bill 12 relating to
capping attorneys fees in certain cases. The Board found no reasonable suspicion to believe
.that Representative Vos violated the Ethics Code through that activity. The reasons for that
determination are set out in the enclosed letter of November 3, 2011 from the Board’s Director
and General Counsel, Kevin J. Kennedy, to Representative Vos which Representative Vos has
made public. '

Sincerely,
Jonjathan Becker, Administrator
Division of Ethics and Accountability

cc: Representative Robin Vos
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State of Wisconsin\Government Accountability Board

212 East Washington Avenue, 3 Floor
Post Office Box 7984

Madison, W1 53707-7984

Voice (608) 266-800S

Fax (608) 267-0500

E-mail: gab@wisconsin.gov
http:/igab.wi.gov

JUDGE THOMAS H. BARLAND
Chair

KEVIN J. KENNEDY
Director and Gencral Counsel

November 3, 2011

The Honorable Robin Vos
State Representative
Room 309 East

State Capitol

P.O. Box 8953

Madison, WI 53708

Dear Representative Vos:

Your staff contacted our office this morning to ask our opinion as to whether your participation
in the consideration and vote regarding Special Session Senate Bill 12, relating to factors
determining the reasonableness of attorney fees, would violate the Ethics Code for State Public
Officials. It is our understanding that the bill would limit attorney fees in certain cases to
amounts lower than allowed under current law. We also understand that you have been involved
in a lawsuit as the owner of a rental property, and that SB 12 may have governed the award of
attorney fees in that case if it had been in effect when that lawsuit was filed. Based upon media
reports, it is unclear whether passage of the bill might still affect or influence the outcome of the
lawsuit.

 The Government Accountability Board, and the State Ethics Board before it, has analyzed
similar matters to determine if the circumstances present a conflict of interest under the Code of
Ethics for State Public Officials, specifically under Section 19.45 of the Wisconsin Statutes. I
am including with this correspondence a formal opinion of the Board, 2009 GAB 02, which
- outlines the Board's analysis of such matters. The opinion may also be found at the followmg

link: http://gab.wi.gov/node/411

In short, even if Special Session Senate Bill 12 applied to your lawsuit, or to future litigation in
which you were involved, it is our opinion that the Ethics Code does not prohibit you from
-participating in the debates or votes pertaining to the bill. The language at the bottom of page 2
and top of page 3 of the attached opinion is particularly relevant. It states that Sections 19.45(2)
and 19.46(1)(a) of the Statutes do not apply when an official action is (a) a legislative decision
that affects a large class of people; (b) the official’s presence in the class is not significant when
compared to the number of similarly situated people in the class; and (c) the effect of the

- proposed legislation on the official is not significantly different than on other members of the
class. The attached opinion also cites other previous opinions which have come to the same
conclusion.

As applied to your question, it appears that the proposed bill is certainly a legislative decision
and that it would affect not only all landlords in the State, but all other individuals and businesses
which may become party to a variety of different legal actions. In addition, your presence in the
class is not significant when compared to the number of similarly situated people who might be
affected, and the effect on you is not significantly different than on other members of the class.
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The Honorable Robin Vos
November 3, 2011
Page 2

In other words, the bill is not one that affects, for instance, only ten property owners, with you or
your business owning the largest property that would be affected.

Thank you for contacting the Government Accountability Board. I hope that this information
responds to your question, but please feel free to contact us if you have any other questions.

GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD
%gd:vn- -
¢z

Kevin J. Kennedy
Director and General Counsel

Case 2:14-cv-00139-RTR Filed 04/15/14 Page 89 of 95 Document 105 p, gg



2012-05, Representative Evan Wynn

Mr. Becker provided an oral and written report. Staff recommended an investigation at
the March 20 meeting, based on a complaint received March 6, 2012 alleging that two
news releases from Representative Wynn were campaign pieces produced and
distributed using state resources. The Board asked Mr. Becker to come back to the
Board at a future meeting with examples of prior investigations and enforcement actions
for similar activities. Mr. Becker said that prior communications, for which the Board
imposed forfeitures, were critical of candidates for other State offices while
Representative Wynn’s said the communications were critical of another member of the
Legislature, which is permitted and were issued before any announced candidacies.
Based on that review and the distinctions noted, staff recommends dismissal.

Discussion.

MOTION: Not to authorize an investigation because of no reasonable suspicion a
violation has occurred. Moved by Judge Cane, seconded by Judge Barland.

Roll call vote: Barland: Aye Brennan: Aye
Cane: Aye Deininger: Aye
Nichol: Aye Vocke: Aye
Motion carried unanimously.
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State of Wlsconsm \ Government Accountablhty Board

212 East Washmgtun Aveaue, 3 Floor
Post Office Box 7984

Madison, WI 53707-7984

Voice (608) 266-8005

Fax  (608)267-0500

E-mail: gab@wisconsin.gov
bttp//gab.wi.gov

JUDGE DAVID G. DEININGER
Chairperson

KEVIN J. KENNEDY
Director and General Counsel

July 5, 2012

Beth Vruwink
24 W. Ash Ln.
Milton, WI 53563

Re: In the Matter of Representative Evan Wynn, 2012 GAB-05
Dear Ms. Vruwink: |

The Government Accountability Board received your complaint against Rep. Evan Wynn on March 6, 2012.
Your complaint alleged that Rep. Wynn used state resources to produce and distribute two documents whose
focus was on criticizing Rep. Andy Jorgensen, in violation of Wis. Stats. §19.45(2), which prohibits the use of a
state office to obtain anything of substantial value for private benefit and the use of state office for an unlawful

benefit.

The Government Accountability Board authorized an investigation into this matter at its March 12, 2012
meeting. GAB staff conducted initial inquiries into whether reasonable suspicion existed to pursue further
action in this matter. At the conclusion of these inquires, the staff recommended the Board dismiss the
complaint. The communications issued by Rep. Wynn were critical of another member of the Legislature and
their voting record, which is permitted. In addition, the communications were issued prior to any
announcement of candidaciés for the 2012 Fall Election. Based on these facts, the Board approved the GAB
staff recommendation at its May 15, 2012 meeting and dismissed this complaint on the grounds of no
reasonable suspicion that a violation had occurred. The Board considers this matter closed.

If you have questions, please contact the Government Accountability Board Helpdesk at (608) 261-2028.

Regards,

e gl

Nathan W. Judnic
Campaign Finance Auditor
Wisconsin Government Accountability Board

Cc: Jonathan Becker, Division Administrator — Ethics and Accountability

6JNA7L
~/5/12

SR
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2012-08 - ALEC

Mr. Becker made an oral and written presentation regarding disposition of the complaint
by the Center for Media and Democracy (CMD) alleging that legislators broke
Wisconsin’s lobbying law by attending conferences sponsored by the American
Legislative Exchange Council (ALEC). Mr. Becker said the activity is legal because if
it can be demonstrated that an activity is on behalf of the state, an organization can pay.
Legislators can attend the conference, and if ALEC did not pay, the state would pay.
CMD also accused ALEC of lobbying without registration, but the group itself does not
lobby anyone, and does not pay anyone to communicate with legislators. Many of
ALEC’s individual members are already registered lobbying principals.

MOTION: Adopt Preliminary Findings and Conclusions on Pages 15-17 of the Closed

Session Board materials. Moved by Judge Cane, seconded by Judge Brennan. Motion
carried unanimously.
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State of Wisconsin Government Accountability Board
In the Matter of )
) PRELIMINARY FINDINGS OF
) FACT AND CONCLUSIONS
American Legislative Exchange )
Council and Time Warner Cable ) GAB Case #2012-08

Background. On March 23, 2012, the Government Accountability Board received a
complaint from The Center for Media and Democracy against the American Legislative
Exchange Council (*“ALEC™) and 43 Republican legislators alleging violations of §19.45
and §13.625, Wis. Stats. The Center for Media and Democracy filed a supplement to its
complaint on April 11, 2012. The complaint centered on the reimbursement and/or
payment of travel expenses to legislators for attendance at ALEC conferences. The
complaint also alleged that legislators accepted free tickets to a baseball game and party
from Time Warner Cable, a Wisconsin lobbying principal and member of ALEC.
Finally, the complaint alleged that a number of legislators failed to report the receipt of
expense payments by ALEC on their Statements of Economic Interests.

Findings of Fact.
Attendance at ALEC conferences

The Ethics Code, §19.45 (3m), Wis. Stats., generally prohibits state public officials from
accepting, food, drink, travel or lodging from anyone unless a specific exception applies.
However, §19.56 (3) (c) permits an official to accept payment or reimbursement of actual
and reasonable costs for such items if the official can show by clear and convincing
evidence that the costs were incurred or items received on behalf of, and primarily for the
benefit of, the State. Guideline 1222, adopted by the Board, further provides that the
payment of costs should be provided, arranged, or sanctioned by an event’s organizer.
The Board has also advised that an official may attend meals and hospitality suites hosted
or sanctioned by the event organizer, but not events held in conjunction with a conference
but not officially a part of it.

In a staff opinion issued to ALEC on June 30, 2010, and affirmed by the Board on
October 15, 2010, the Board said:

The fact that lobbying organizations may make donations to ALEC or that
lobbyists may assist in ALEC’s fundraising does not bring the lobbying law
into play as long as these organizations and individuals neither earmark any
monies nor help to decide which Wisconsin legislators receive a scholarship.
As I understand it, only ALEC staff makes scholarship award decisions.

Legislators may accept actual and reasonable expenses of travel as well as
conference fees. If reimbursement is provided directly to a legislator, he or
she must report that to the Board.

In response to a letter of August 20, 2012 which was a part of the Board materials at its
last meeting, the Board received a letter from ALEC’s attomey. ALEC’s response
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indicates that ALEC has, for the most part, been following the Board’s advice and that
ALEC contributors do not choose which legislators will attend conferences.

It does appear that on November 3, 2010, ALEC provided the ALEC Public Chairs in
Wisconsin, Senator Scott Fitzgerald and then-Representative Michael Huebsch, with the
names of specific donors to the scholarship fund for Wisconsin. In his November 12,
2010 Memorandum to ALEC, ALEC’s attorney advised ALEC not to provide this
information to legislators and ALEC’s attorney has stated that ALEC has said it is
following his recommended procedures.

At no time did the Board advise ALEC not to disclose contributors, although that appears
to be a good practice. The question arises whether the fact that contributors to ALEC
may designate contributions to be used for Wisconsin legislators was improper. This
practice does not violate any statutory provision or the Board’s advice against earmarking
for specific individuals as long as the contributors are not involved in the selection of
legislators or the determination as to the amount of reimbursement each legislator will
receive.

Baseball game

As indicated above, legislators are permitted to accept food and drinks at dinners and
hospitality suites that are a scheduled part of a conference. It does not matter who may
underwrite the dinner or hospitality suite, as long as the conference sponsor has arranged
or sanctioned the event. On the other hand, the Board has generally advised legislators
against attending events like concerts or golf outings, even if sanctioned, because the
State would never reimburse for such activities and it would be harder to demonstrate that
attendance was primarily for the benefit of the State and not for private benefit.

According to ALEC, the baseball game event was the scheduled dinner event for that day
of the ALEC conference. So it appears to fall in between an official dinner and an
entertainment event. The Board has asked legislators who attended the event to
reimburse ALEC $25 for the cost of baseball tickets because attendance at a baseball
game is primarily of private benefit and not a benefit to the State. This appears to have
been the cost of attendance minus the value of food and drink that was put at $50. All
legislators who attended the event have done so. )

Statements of Economic Interests

In the past, the Board’s staff advised the Chief Clerks that legislators who received direct
reimbursement from a conference sponsor must report that on the individual’s Statement
of Economic Interests. We also advised the Chief Clerks that if a legislator paid expenses
from the legislator’s office account, and a conference sponsor reimbursed the State
directly, there was no need to report anything. The reasoning was that the State is paying
the expenses and the State is receiving reimbursement. In addition, it would all be a
matter of public record.

The Board has obtained from ALEC the names of all legislators who were directly

reimbursed. The Board determined that a number of legislators failed to include the
receipt of expenses from ALEC on their Statements of Economic interest, although a
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number reported the expense receipt by letter and other treated it as a campaign expense
reimbursement. There is no evidence that the failure to report was done intentionally.

Conclusion

There is no probable cause to believe that ALEC violated the Ethics Code or lobbying
law in connection with reimbursing the expenses of legislators who attended the 2010,
2011, or 2012 ALEC conferences.

There is no probable cause to believe that any legislators violated the Ethics Code or
lobbying law in connection with accepting reimbursement for the expenses of attending
the 2010, 2011, or 2012 ALEC conferences.

Legislators should, and have, paid ALEC for the cost of the baseball game which was the
venue for a conference dinner and no further action is warranted..

Legislators should have reported receipts from ALEC to the Government Accountability
Board on their Statements of Economic Interests, by separate letter to the Board, or as

campaign expense reimbursement. All but three legislators addressed this and we are in
communications with those individuals.

Adopted by the six members of the Board at its meeting of March 20-21,2013.

STATE OF WISCONSIN
GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTABILITY BOARD
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